




1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Nicole Tudor, Executive Assistant 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  March 8, 2022 
 
ITEM:  Transfer of Seasonal All Alcohol Retail Alcohol License 
 
EXPLANATION:  The Truro Select Board will hold a Public Hearing on the application from 
proposed transferee Salty Market Farmstand Inc dba Salty Market Farmstand, Liam Luttrell 
Rowland, Owner & Manager for a petition of transfer of an all-alcohol retail package store 
liquor license under MGL Chapter 138, Section 23 from licensee Salty Market LLC, Ellery 
Althaus, Manager & Owner, 2 Highland Rd, Truro, MA.  
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  The transfer of the seasonal all alcohol retail package store liquor 
license will not proceed. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to approve the application to transfer the seasonal all alcohol  
retail package store liquor license from licensee Salty Market LLC, Ellery Althaus to proposed 
transferee Salty Market Farmstand Inc. dba Salty Market Farmstand, Liam Luttrell Rowland.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Public Hearing Notice 
2. ABCC Application 
3. Police Chief Memo  

 

Agenda Item:  2A 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF TRURO 
P.O. Box 2030, Truro, MA  02666 

Licensing Department 
Tel:  508-349-7004, Extension: 110 or 124 Fax: 508-349-5505 
  Email: ntudor@truro-ma.gov or nscoullar@truro-ma.gov  

TOWN OF TRURO 

PUBLIC HEARING 
TRANSFER OF SEASONAL  

ALL ALCOHOL RETAIL PACKAGE STORE LIQUOR LICENSE 

The Truro Select Board will hold a Public Hearing on Tuesday, March 8, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. to hear the  

application from proposed transferee Salty Market Farmstand, Inc. dba Salty Market Farmstand, Liam Luttrell 

Rowland, Owner and Manager for a petition of a transfer of a seasonal all alcohol retail package store liquor 

license under {MGL Chapter 138, Section 23} from licensee Salty Market LLC, Ellery Althaus, Manager & 

Owner, located at 2 Highland Rd, Truro, MA.  

The public is encouraged to submit comments in writing to the Office of the Town Manager/Select Board, PO 

Box 2030, Truro MA , 02666, or by emailing the Town Manager at dtangeman@truro-ma.gov or by calling into 

the hearing. To provide comment during the hearing, please call-in toll free at 1-877-309-2073 and enter the 

following access code when prompted 311-786-589 or use the link: https://meet.goto.com/311786589.  

You can also view the meeting on Channel 18 in Truro and on the web on “Truro TV Channel 18” button under 

“Helpful Links” on the homepage of the Town of Truro website. Click on the green “Watch” button in the 

upper right of the page.  

Robert Weinstein  

Chair Select Board 

Agenda Item: 2A1

mailto:ntudor@truro-ma.gov
mailto:nscoullar@truro-ma.gov
mailto:dtangeman@truro-ma.gov
https://meet.goto.com/311786589?_ga=2.189608424.21742303.1645194728-228554141.1645194728


         Agenda Item: 2A2











































• Managed schedules for over 40 employees  
• Managed FOH and BOH for Breakfast, Lunch and Dinner of the Resident Dining services  
• Managed Safety protocols and Disciplinary maters for BOH / Kitchen Staff over 30 employees  

Culinary Leadership Stage with Curate, and NightBell, by Chef Katie Button (3 
months)  

• Shadowed Frank Muller (the Chef Director of the company) 
• Attended management meetings  
• Line-cooked at both Curate and Nightbell as needed 
• Worked rotating shifts with prep team, including whole animal butchery  
• Expo at Curate and Nightbell.  

Chef Director 
Green Opportunities, Asheville NC  (2012 – 2016) 
• Managed Operations Budget of + $350,000  
• Increased Sales by $200,00 in 3 year period 
• Managed operations with staff of 6- 10 employees who served  20 students of daily learning 

and food service.  
• Help Lead and co-work with another 10 employee responsible for student services  

Including Bi-monthly diversity training, non-violent communication, and team building 
sessions.  

• Managed Federal Grants (Kresge and CED) and helped create outcomes to secure future 
funding 

• Received and maintained Highest Food Sanitation Rating in 28801 zipcode  
• Helped implement and create Work-Experience job placement of students which required 

fostering lasting partnerships with James Beard  Outstanding Chefs John Fleer,  
• Created Chef  

Pastry Chef 
The Admiral, Asheville NC (2012-2014) 
• Worked on the line in all stations 
• Worked with Elliot Moss (James Beard Nominee Best Chef South East) to Create Award 

Winning Restaurant focusing on locally sourced ingredients and modern southern cuisine  
• Wrote HCCAP Plan for Restaurant for vacuum sealing, sous vide cooking, and fermentation 

practices  

Adjunct Chef Instructor 
AB Tech Community College, Asheville NC (2011 – 2016) (overlapped with 
Green Opportunities listed above  
• Built Curriculum for Culinary 142 class 
• Designed Programing that included testing and performance matrix 
• Managed positive classroom environment for students with diverse backgrounds learning  
• Lowered attrition rate 



• Raised graduation rate 
• Received positive student feed back for ten cycles of training and placed over 90 students in 

local restaurants around the city 

Head Chef  
The Magnetic Field, Asheville NC (2010- 2012) 
• Consultant to open restaurant 
• Managed team of 5 employees  

Grew company to well-established eatery recognized in a thriving new food destination  
In the mountains for North Carolina  

AWARDS  

Ocean Spray Cranberry Chef Sponsorship (2019-2020) 
Sponsorship given to five Chefs in the northeast seeking to better their industry towards  
sustainability and use of local food 

Martin Luther King Jr. Community Service Award   (2015) 
Regional community service award given out by MLK association and Buncobm County 

Blind Pig Dinner (2012) 
Regional Dinner Club Highlighting the Cities Top Chefs 

Wild Wild Wellfleet, People’s Choice Best Dish   (2010) 
Regional competition in Cape Cod for Best Dish  

Outstanding in the Field, Cape Chef   (2009) 
National Award given by Outstanding in the Field Food Tour (www.outstandinginthefeild.com 

PRESS 

https://mountainx.com/food/one-meal-at-a-time-dinner-at-green-opportunities-kitchen-ready-
table/ 

http://www.citizen-times.com/story/news/local/2016/05/19/mountain-causes-soul-food-southside 

https://www.prnewswire.com/news-releases/ocean-spray-launches-the-cranberry-
chef-collective-a-culinary-collaboration-featuring-five-of-new-englands-most-
influential-culinary-leaders-300958433.html 

https://ediblecapecod.ediblecommunities.com/food-thought/spindler-s













 
 
 

 

THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

I hereby certify that, upon examination of this document, duly submitted to me, it appears 

that the provisions of the General Laws relative to corporations have been complied with, 

and I hereby approve said articles; and the filing fee having been paid, said articles are 

deemed to have been filed with me on: 

 

 

 

 

 

WILLIAM FRANCIS GALVIN 

Secretary of the Commonwealth 

February 04, 2022 09:10 AM

MA SOC   Filing Number      Date: 2/4/2022 9:10:00 AM

































Agenda Item: 2A3



Agenda Item: 4A 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 

                     Select Board Agenda Item  
 
DEPARTMENT: Administration  
 
REQUESTOR:  Kristen Reed Vice-Chair and Susan Areson Clerk 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  March 8, 2022   
 
ITEM: Committee Updates-School Committee    
 
EXPLANATION:  The School Committee Chair, Kolby Blehm, will speak briefly with the Select 
Board Members on the board's questions.  
 
Name of Committee/Board: 
Date of Presentation: 
Number of Members:  
Number of Vacancies: 
 
Accomplishments for the past 12 months: 
 
Goals for the next 12 months: 
 
Status of goals: 
 
Challenges in Achieving Goals: 
 
Support required from the Select Board/Town Manager: 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Discussion only   

 



 
 

Agenda Item:  6A 

TOWN OF TRURO 
                    Select Board Agenda Item  

 
DEPARTMENT: Administration  
 
REQUESTOR:  Darrin Tangeman, Town Manager  
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  March 8, 2022 
 
ITEM: Cannabis Manufacturing Applicant Presentation  
 
EXPLANATION:  The Hatchery, a boutique marijuana cultivation and product manufacturing 
facility, presented a proposal to the Select Board on March 23, 2021. They requested to 
execute a Host Community Agreement with the Town of Truro for their proposed project at 1 
Noons Heights in North Truro. To apply for licensing from the Cannabis Control Commission, a 
Cannabis business must first execute a Host Community Agreement (HCA) with the 
Municipality in which it intends to be located per MGL Chapter 94G §3. Select Board Vice-Chair 
Kristen Reed and Town Manager Darrin Tangeman were appointed by the Board to serve on 
the negotiating team for the Host Community Agreement. 
 
With the assistance of Attorney Jonathan Silverstein of KP Law, the Host Community 
Agreement is prepared and is ready for the Board’s approval. Attorney Silverstein will be 
present to answer any of the Board’s questions and to provide a brief overview of the terms of 
the agreement. 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  N/A 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Move to approve and electronically sign the Host Community Agreement 
between the Town of Truro and The Hatchery. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Host Community Agreement 

 



1 
 

 

THE HATCHERY, LLC 

 HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENT FOR THE SITING OF A MARIJUANA 
CULTIVATION AND PRODUCT MANUFACTURING FACILITY  

IN THE TOWN OF TRURO 

 
This Host Community Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into this       day March, 2022 
(the “Effective Date”) by and under the laws of the Town of Truro, Massachusetts, a municipal 
corporation duly organized under the Laws of the Commonwealth, acting through its Board of 
Selectmen, with a principal address of 24 Town Hall Road, Truro, MA 02666 (hereinafter the 
"Town") and The Hatchery LLC, (hereinafter "Licensee") (Town and Licensee, collectively the 
“Parties”). 
 
RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee intends to locate a licensed Marijuana Cultivation and Manufacturing Facility 
in the Town on the property known as 1 Noon Heights, North Truro, MA 02652 (hereinafter the 
"Facility") for the cultivation, processing, and packaging of marijuana, and the delivery of 
marijuana or transfer of marijuana to other marijuana establishments, but not to consumers, in 
accordance with G.L. c.94G and 935 CMR 500.000 et seq. (“State Law”), and such approvals as 
may be issued by the Town, and other applicable regulations, as may be amended (“Local Law”); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, G.L. c.94G, §3(d), and the regulations issued thereunder, require that Town and 
Licensee execute an agreement setting forth the conditions to have the Facility within it that must 
include, but not be limited to, all stipulations of responsibilities between the host community and 
the marijuana establishment; and 
  
WHERAS, the Parties intend by this Agreement to satisfy the provisions of G.L. c.94G, §3(d), 
applicable to the operation of the Facility in the Town; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises of the Parties contained herein and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree 
as follows: 
 
AGREEMENT 
 

1. Authorization.  The Parties respectively represent and warrant that: 
 

a. Each is duly organized and existing and in good standing, has the full power, 
authority, and legal right to enter into and perform this Agreement, and the 
execution, delivery and performance hereof and thereof (i) will not violate any 
judgment, order, state law, bylaw, or regulation, and (ii) do not conflict with, or 
constitute a default under, any agreement or instrument to which either is a party 
or by which either party may be bound or affected; and 

Agenda Item: 6A1 



2 
 

 

 
b. This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered and constitutes 

legal, valid and binding obligations of each party, enforceable in accordance with 
its terms, and there is no action, suit, or proceeding pending, or, to the knowledge 
of either party, threatened against or affecting wither wherein an unfavorable 
decision, ruling or finding would materially adversely affect the performance of 
any obligations hereunder, except as otherwise specifically noted in this 
Agreement.   

 
2. Local Permitting.  Licensee agrees that it is required to obtain all local permits required 

pursuant to Massachusetts Law and the Town’s Bylaws and regulations.  Provided the 
Town acts in accordance with the procedures set forth in G.L. c.44, §53G, Licensee shall 
be required to pay the reasonable costs of the employment by the Town’s boards and/or 
officials of outside consultants, including without limitation, engineers, architects, 
scientists and attorneys required to review the application for such local permits required 
to operate the Facility.  
 

3. Community Impact.  Licensee anticipates that the Town will incur additional expenses 
and impacts upon the Town’s road system, law enforcement, fire protection services, 
inspectional services and permitting services, public health services, abuse prevention 
efforts, and potential additional unforeseen impacts upon the Town.  The Parties 
acknowledge and agree that the extent and scope of these costs will be inherently difficult 
to identify and quantify, and to document notwithstanding the provisions of G.L. c. 94G, 
§3.  Accordingly, in order to mitigate the financial impact upon the Town and use of the 
Town’s resources, the Licensee agrees to make payments to the Town, in the amounts and 
under the terms provided herein.   

 
4. Host Community Payments.   

 
a. Community Impact Payments.  In the event that Licensee obtains a final 

license, or any other such license/or approval as may be required under 
State Law, for the operation of the Facility in the Town from the 
Massachusetts Cannabis Control Commission (“CCC”), and receives all 
required approvals from the Town to operate the Facility, then Licensee 
agrees to make quarterly community impact payments to the Town in an 
amount equal to three percent (3.00%) of the Gross Sales Price of all 
marijuana and marijuana-infused products cultivated and/or manufactured 
or processed at the Facility (the “Community Impact Payment”).  For 
purposes of calculation under this paragraph, the term "Gross Sales" shall 
mean the grand total of all sales transactions from the Facility without any 
deductions included in the figure. This definition shall include but not be 
limited to sales of marijuana, marijuana infused products or derivatives, 
marijuana accessories, and any other products that facilitate the use of 
marijuana, such as vaporizers, and as further defined in G.L. c.94G, §1 or 
105 CMR 725.004, and any other merchandise or product sold by the 
Licensee or any affiliated entity, cultivated, processed or sold from or 



3 
 

 

through the Facility ("Goods"). The term "Gross Internal Sales" as used in 
this Agreement shall mean all Gross Sales occurring through transfers of 
Goods cultivated or processed at the Facility to a Medical Marijuana 
Treatment Center (RMD), Marijuana Retailer, or other facility wholly or 
partly owned by the Company or other related entity at less than fair market 
value, and such Sales shall be valued at the price paid when such Goods 
are sold at arms lengthy to any Qualified Patient or retail customer. The 
initial Community Impact Payment shall be due 30 days after the 90th day 
following the first sale of harvested cannabis the “Initial Payment”), and 
each subsequent payment shall be due on the same day of each quarter 
thereafter. 

 
b. Community Benefit Payments.  In or within thirty (30) days after the 90th day 

following the first sale of harvested cannabis, the Licensee shall make an initial 
contribution to the Town in the amount of Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000), 
representing the approximate cost of designing and installing eighteen landscaped 
islands along Route 6 in the vicinity of the Facility (“Initial Community Benefit 
Payment”).  During the Term hereof, the Licensee shall pay to the Town the sum 
of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) per year, which amount shall increase at the 
rate of two and one half percent (2 1/2 %) per year (“Annual Community Benefit 
Payment”).  The Town intends to request that Town Meeting appropriate the 
Annual Community Benefit Payment for the purposes of funding beach cleanup 
events and maintenance of the landscaped islands funded through the Initial 
Community Benefit Payment. 

 
i. The Parties agree that the Initial Community Benefit Payments shall be 

applied toward the design and installing eighteen landscaped islands along 
Route 6 in the vicinity of the Facility including signage denoting that such 
landscape islands were funded by the Licensee or its Owners the exact 
specifications of which shall be proposed by the Licensee and approved by 
a majority vote of the Select Board. 
 

ii. If the Town does not proceed with the design and/or construction of such 
landscape islands within twelve (12) months of the initial contribution, a) 
the Annual Community Benefit Payment shall not be due, b) the Initial 
Community Benefit Payment shall be applied toward any Community 
Impact Payment due then or in the future per section 4a of this agreement, 
and c) the Licensee shall use at least a portion of the funds that would have 
been applied to The Annual Community Benefit Payment to defray the 
costs of beach cleanup events that shall be organized entirely by the 
Licensee. 
 

c. Timely Payment.  Licensee acknowledges that time is of the essence with respect 
to performance of its obligations under each and every paragraph of this 
Agreement and that late payments shall be subject to interest at the rates prescribed 
by G.L. c. 59, §57, provided that no interest shall be due if such default is cured 



4 
 

 

within ten (10) days following written notice of default.  If Licensee fails to cure 
such default within said ten (10) days following written notice thereof, interest 
shall be due from the date of the original default.  These payments or benefits shall 
be made payable to the Town at the direction of the Town Manager.  Licensee 
further acknowledges that all payments due the Town hereunder shall constitute 
“municipal charges” pursuant to G.L. c.44, §§57 and 58. 

 
d. Application of Payments.  The Licensee acknowledges and agrees that the Town 

is under no obligation to use the Impact Fee and Community Development 
Payments made herein in any particular manner, except as outlined in section 4a 
and 4.b of this agreement, and that such funding is subject to the provisions of state 
law, including without limitation, G.L. c.44, §53. 

 
5. Annual Filing. Licensee shall notify the Town when it commences cultivation at the 

Facility and shall submit quarterly financial statements to the Town, which shall include 
certification of itemized gross sales, and all other information required to ascertain 
compliance with the terms of this Agreement. The Licensee shall provide the Town access 
to its financial records and copies of its financial filings to the CCC, documenting gross 
revenues. Such financial records shall include, without limitation, an accounting of all 
transfers to related entities of cannabis products cultivated and/or produced at the Facility, 
the prices actually paid by such related entities and the prices utilized by Licensee to 
calculate the Community Impact Fees for such transfers. 

 
The Licensee shall maintain its books, financial records and any other data related to its finances 
and operations in accordance with standard accounting practices and any applicable regulations 
and guidelines promulgated by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  All records shall be retained 
for a period of at least seven (7) years. 

6. Term and Termination.  The term of this Agreement shall be for five (5) years from the 
date the Town receives the first Community Impact Payment (“Term”).  All payments 
required hereunder shall remain in effect for the duration of the Term.  One year prior to 
the expiration of the Term, the parties shall meet in good faith to negotiate a new Host 
Community Agreement, which shall include a Community Development Payment and an 
Community Benefit Fee.  It shall be presumed that the new MCF Community Impact Fee 
will be 3.00% of the gross sales of marijuana and marijuana-infused products, and the 
burden shall be on the Licensee to demonstrate that the new Community Impact Fee should 
be a lower percentage of such gross sales.  If the parties fail to enter into a new Host 
Community Agreement prior to the expiration of the Term, this Agreement shall expire, 
and the Town’s support for the Facility shall be deemed to have terminated.   Upon 
voluntary or involuntary permanent termination of the use, and upon delivery to the Town 
of written notice of such termination, payments or benefits shall immediately cease; 
provided, however, that Licensee shall, within seven (7) days of such notice, pay to the 
Town the payments required under paragraph 4 hereof, prorated based upon the number 
of days that elapsed from the immediately prior payment date to the date of such 
termination of use and the amount of gross sales during such period 
 



5 
 

 

7. Acknowledgements. The Town understands and acknowledges that Payments due 
pursuant to this Agreement are contingent upon the Licensee’s receipt of all state and local 
approvals to operate a MCF at the Facility.  The Licensee acknowledges that the Town’s 
support for the Facility is contingent upon the Payments due pursuant to this Agreement.   
 

8. Local Property Taxes.  At all times during the Term of this Agreement, property, both 
real and personal, owned or operated by Licensee shall be treated as taxable, and all 
applicable real estate and personal property taxes for that property shall be paid either 
directly by Licensee or by its landlord, and neither Licensee nor its landlord shall object 
or otherwise challenge the taxability of such property and shall not seek a non-profit 
exemption from paying such taxes. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) if real or personal 
property owned, leased or operated by Licensee is determined to be non-taxable or 
partially non-taxable, or (ii) if the value of such property is abated with the effect of 
reducing or eliminating the tax which would otherwise be paid if assessed at fair cash 
value as defined in G.L. c. 59, §38, or (iii) if Licensee is determined to be entitled or 
subject to exemption with the effect of reducing or eliminating the tax which would 
otherwise be due if not so exempted, then Licensee shall pay to the Town an amount which 
when added to the taxes, if any, paid on such property, shall be equal to the taxes which 
would have been payable on such property at fair cash value and at the otherwise 
applicable tax rate, if there had been no abatement or exemption; this payment shall be in 
addition to the payments made by Licensee under Section 4 of this Agreement.  
 

9. Community Support and Additional Obligations.  
 

a. Local Vendors – To the extent consistent with federal, state, and municipal laws and 
regulations, Licensee shall use best efforts in a legal and non-discriminatory manner to 
give priority to qualified Truro businesses, suppliers, contractors, builders and vendors 
in the provision of goods and services called for in the construction, furnishing, 
maintenance, and continued operation of the Facility.   

 
b. Employment/Salaries – Except for senior management, and to the extent such practice 

and its implementation are consistent with federal, state, and municipal laws and 
regulations, Licensee shall use best efforts in a legal and non-discriminatory manner to 
give priority to hire qualified Truro residents as employees of the Facility.  

 
d. The Licensee shall, at least annually, provide the Town with copies of all reports 

submitted to the CCC regarding Licensee’s operations at the Facility. 
 

e. The Licensee will work cooperatively with all necessary municipal departments, 
boards, commissions, and agencies ensure that Licensee’s operations are compliant 
with all of the Town’s codes, rules, and regulations. 

 
10. Application Support.  The Town agrees to submit to the CCC all documentation and 

information required by the CCC from the Town for the Licensee to obtain approval to 
operate a MCF. This Agreement does not prevent the Town from withdrawing its support 
of the Facility or request that the CCC revoke any license(s) or approval issued for the 



6 
 

 

Facility, including by the CCC, upon expiration of the Term, if the parties have not entered 
into a new Host Community Agreement.   
 
This Agreement does not affect, limit, or control the authority of the Town’s boards, 
commissions, and departments to carry out their respective powers and duties to decide 
upon and to issue, or deny, applicable permits and other approvals under the statutes and 
regulations of the Commonwealth, the General and Zoning Bylaws of the Town, or 
applicable regulations of those boards, commissions, and departments, or to enforce said 
statutes, Bylaws, and regulations. The Town, by entering into this Agreement, is not 
thereby required or obligated to issue such permits and approvals as may be necessary for 
a MCF to operate in the Town, or to refrain from enforcement action against the Licensee 
and/or the Facility for violation of the terms of said permits and approvals or said statutes, 
Bylaws, and regulations. 

11. Security.  Licensee shall maintain security at the Facility in accordance with a security 
plan presented to the Town and approved by the CCC. In addition, Licensee shall at all 
times comply with State Law and Local Law regarding security of the Facility. Such 
compliance shall include, but will not be limited to: providing hours of operation; after-
hours contact information and access to surveillance operations; and requiring Licensee’s 
agents to produce their Program ID Card to law enforcement upon request.  

To the extent requested by the Town’s Police Department, and subject to the security and 
architectural review requirements of the CCC, the Licensee shall work with the Town’s 
Police Department in determining the placement of exterior security cameras, so that at 
least two cameras are located to provide an unobstructed view in each direction of the 
public way(s) on which the facility is located. 

Licensee agrees to cooperate with the Police Department, including but not limited to 
periodic meetings to review operational concerns, security, randomized delivery 
schedule and procedures, cooperation in investigations, and communications with the 
Police Department of any suspicious activities at or in the immediate vicinity of the 
Facility, and with regard to any anti-diversion procedures.   

To the extent requested by the Town’s Police Department, the Licensee shall work with 
the Police Department to implement a comprehensive diversion prevention plan to 
prevent diversion in compliance with 935 CMR 500. Such plan to be in place prior to the 
commencement of operations at the Facility.  Such plan shall include, but is not limited 
to, (i) training Licensee employees to be aware of, observe, and report any unusual 
behavior in authorized visitors or other Licensee employees that may indicate the 
potential for diversion; and (ii) utilizing seed-to-sale tracking software to closely track 
all inventory at the Facility. 

12. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, without regard to the 
principals of conflicts of law thereof.  
 

13. Amendments/Waiver.  Amendments or waivers of any term, condition, covenant, duty 
or obligation contained in this Agreement may be made only by written amendment 
executed by all Parties, prior to the effective date of the amendment. 



7 
 

 

 
14. Severability.  If any term or condition of this Agreement or any application thereof shall 

to any extent be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable by the court of competent 
jurisdiction, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining terms and conditions 
of this Agreement shall not be deemed affected thereby, unless the Town would be 
substantially or materially prejudiced.  Elimination or reduction of any payment required 
hereunder shall constitute substantial or material prejudice to the Town.  If any term or 
condition deemed unlawful concerns the right of the Town to the payment and use of any 
part of the Annual Payments, the parties agree that such part of the Annual Payments paid 
and to be paid to the Town hereunder shall constitute a grant or donation for the purposes 
set forth herein, and shall be held and used accordingly. Further, the Licensee agrees it 
will not challenge, in any jurisdiction, the enforceability of any provision included in this 
Agreement; and, the Licensee shall pay for all reasonable fees and costs incurred by the 
Town in defending and enforcing this Agreement.   
 

15. Successors/Assigns. This Agreement is binding upon the Parties hereto, their successors, 
assigns and legal representatives. The Town shall not assign or transfer any interest or 
obligations in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Licensee, which 
shall not be unreasonably delayed, conditioned, or withheld. The Licensee shall not assign, 
sublet or otherwise transfer any interest, its rights nor delegate its obligations under this 
Agreement (other than to its affiliates) without the prior written consent of the Town, 
which shall not be unreasonably delayed, conditioned, or withheld.    
 

16. Force Majeure.  If and to the extent that either party is prevented from performing its 
obligations hereunder by an event of force majeure, such party shall be excused from 
performing hereunder and shall not be liable in damages or otherwise, and the Parties shall 
instead negotiate in good faith with respect to appropriate modifications of the terms 
hereof. For purposes of this Agreement, the term force majeure shall mean the supervening 
causes described here, each of which is beyond the reasonable control of the affected party: 
acts of God, fire, earthquakes, floods, explosion, actions of the elements, war, terrorism, 
riots, mob violence, a general shortage of labor, equipment, facilities, materials, or 
supplies in the open market, failure of transportation, strikes, lockouts, actions of labor 
unions, condemnation, laws or orders of any governmental or military authorities, or any 
other cause similar to the foregoing, not within the control of such party obligated to 
perform such obligation.  
 

17. Attorney’s Fees.  Licensee shall reimburse the Town for reasonable attorney fees incurred 
by the Town in conjunction with the Facility, except as a result of the willful or intentional 
misconduct of the Town, including in connection with the negotiation of this Agreement.  
Such reimbursement shall be made within fourteen days after written request by the Town. 
 

18. Indemnification.  The Licensee shall indemnify, defend, and hold the Town harmless 
from and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, actions, causes of actions, 
defenses, and/or proceedings, including resultant costs and attorney’s fees, except as a 
result of the willful or intentional misconduct of the Town (collectively, the “Claims”), 
brought against the Town, its agents, departments, officials, employees, and/or successors, 



8 
 

 

by any third party arising from or relating to the Facility or the Agreement.  Such 
indemnification shall include, but shall not be limited to, all reasonable fees and reasonable 
costs of attorneys and consultants of the Town’s choosing incurred in defending such 
claims, actions, proceedings or demands. The Licensee agrees, within thirty (30) days of 
written notice by the Town, to reimburse the Town for any and all costs and fees incurred 
in defending itself with respect to any such claim, action, proceeding or demand. 
 

19. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire integrated agreement between 
the Parties with respect to the matters described. This Agreement supersedes all prior 
agreements, negotiations and representations, either written or oral, and it shall not be 
modified or amended except by a written document executed by the Parties hereto. 

 
20. Notices. Except as otherwise provided herein, any notices, consents, demands, requests, 

approvals, or other communications required or permitted under this Agreement shall be 
in writing and delivered by hand or mailed postage prepaid, return receipt requested, by 
registered or certified mail or by other reputable delivery service, and will be  effective 
upon receipt for hand or said delivery and three days after mailing, to the other Party at 
the following address: 

  
  
 To the Town:   
 
 Town of Truro 
 Town Manager  
 24 Town Hall Road 
 Truro, MA 02666 

 
    To the Licensee:   
  
 The Hatchery, LLC 
 10 Main Street 
 Wellfleet, MA 02667 
  
 

21. Third-Parties. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship 
with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either Town or the Licensee. 
 

 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 
 

 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have duly executed this Host Community Agreement on 
the date set forth above. 
 
 
TOWN OF TRURO THE HATCHERY, LLC 
BY ITS SELECT BOARD 
 
 
_______________________________  _________________________________ 
Robert Weinstein, Chair    Name:  
       Title:  
        
_______________________________ 
Kristen Reed, Vice-Chair 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Stephanie Rein, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan Areson, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
John Dundas, Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Darrin Tangeman, Town Manager, and Trudi Brazil, Town Accountant 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  March 8, 2022  
 
ITEM:  Fiscal Year 2023 Budget Presentation 
 
EXPLANATION:  The proposed Fiscal Year 2023 Budget will be presented to the Select Board, 
as will an overview of related financial articles. Some financial articles that are finalized and 
have been reviewed by Town Counsel are included for vote in a subsequent agenda item. 
Town Manager Tangeman and Town Accountant Trudi Brazil will present the FY2023 Proposed 
Budget that was refined based on conversations during the Budget Task Force process and 
with support from Finance Director Lessin, Assistant Town Manager Clark, Superintendent 
Costigan, Business Manager Harper and department heads. 

Costs of energy, fuel, services, supplies, and wages are rising well beyond the 2.5% levy 
limit, and after an initial $800,000 deficit, staff worked hard to produce an expenditure budget 
that will not require a general override.  The only override requested is a specific override for 
the Fire and Rescue Department.  
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE): See FY2023 Recapitulation  
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Discussion only. Votes to recommend will occur at a subsequent 
meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. FY2023 Simple Budget   
2. FY2023 Simple Recapitulation 

 

Agenda Item:  6B 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item:  6B1





Agenda Item:  6B2



1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Noelle Scoullar, Executive Assistant 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  March 8, 2022 
 
ITEM:   (1) Review and Possible Approval of Curb Cut for 33 Old County Road. 

(2) Review and Possible Approval of Curb Cut for 126 Old County Road. 
 
EXPLANATION:   
(1)  A Curb Cut Application has been submitted for 33 Old County Road.  This is a proposal for a 
new driveway to a proposed dwelling. 
(2) A Curb Cut Application has been submitted for 126 Old County Road.  This is a new home 
build. 
 
Curb Cut Applications for 33 Old County Road and 126 Old County Road were removed from 
the Consent Agenda at the February 8, 2022 Select Board Meeting for future discussion.  
 
Public Works Director Cabral will be available to answer questions related to this agenda item. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Curb cuts will not be permitted. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  (1) Motion to approve/disapprove the curb cut for 33 Old County Road. 
(2) Motion to approve/disapprove the curb cut for 126 Old County Road. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Curb Cut Application for 33 Old County Road. 
2. Narrative for 33 Old County Road. 

 

Agenda Item:  6C 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

3. 33 Old County Road Curb Cut Original Plan 1.12.2022 
4. 33 Old County Road Driveway Alternate 
5. Curb Cut Application for 126 Old County Road. 
6. 126 Old County Personal Letter 
7. 126 Old County Curb Cut Narrative 
8. Felco Driveway Plan and Drainage Calculations-126 Old County 
9. Letter from Brian Hopkins/Augustus Construction-Drive Drainage-Site/Sewage Plan-

Planting Plans for 126 Old County 
10. Historical Documents for 126 Old County 



 Agenda Item:  6C1

January 15

January 15





Agenda Item:  6C2





56

5
5

54

53

52

50

49

48

47

46

45

44

43

42

41

40

39

38

37

36

35

86

85

84

83

82

81

81

80

80

79

79

78

78

77

77

76

76

75

75

74

74

73

72

71

70

69

68

67

66

65

64

63

62

61

60

59

58

57

56

55

54

53

52

51

50

49

48

47

46

45

44

43

42

41

40

38

37

36

86

85

84

83

82

81

80

79

78

77

76

75

74

200' RIVERFRONT
RESOURCE AREA

O
L

D
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 R

O
A

D

+
39.00

+LP 38.77

39.22 +

41

42

70

71

72

69

68

67

66

65

64

63

62

61

60

59

58

56

55

54

53

52

50

49

46

44

40

39

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

71

70

73747576

7778

79

8081

82

83

74

73

84

70

FFE 79.50

68

69

68

67

43

45

47

48

51

57

3% DOWN

6% UP

GARAGE
FFE 69.50

15%
22

%

18
%

PROVIDE NEGATIVE GRADE
PITCH DOWN FROM OLD
COUNTY ROAD TO LOW POINTCROSS P

ITC
H

ON D
RIV

EW
AY

PROPOSED PLANTING ALONG
DRIVEWAY TO MITIGATE
STORMWATER RUNOFF

PROPOSED PLANTING ALONG
DRIVEWAY TO MITIGATE
STORMWATER RUNOFF

DIRECTION OF
STORMWATER RUNOFF

PROPOSED PLANTING ALONG
DRIVEWAY TO MITIGATE
STORMWATER RUNOFF N

S

W

E

1
2
5
°

125°

5
8
°

58°

S
U

N
R

IS
E

J
U

N
E

 2
1

S
U

N
S

E
T

J
U

N
E

 2
1

S
U

N
S

E
T

D
E

C
 2

1

S
U

N
R

IS
E

D
E

C
 2

1

DescriptionNo Date

Le
Bl

an
c 

Jo
n

es
 L

an
d

sc
ap

e 
A

rc
h

it
ec

ts
, I

n
c.

Revisions

TRURO, MA
33 OLD COUNTY ROAD

535 Albany Street No 5A

leblancjones.com

Boston, MA 02118
617.426.6475

Scale:

Project No: 2117

Date:

c

LEBLA
N

C
 JO

N
ES LA

N
D

SC
A

PE A
RC

H
ITEC

TS, IN
C

CURB CUT & DRIVEWAY
PLAN

1"=10'

01-12-22

CURB CUT APPLICATION1 01-12-22

N

L1

Agenda Item:  6C3



5
5

54

53

52

50

49

48

47

46

45

44

43

42

41

40

39

38

37

36

35

34

85

84

83

82

81

81

80

80

79

79

78

78

77

77

76

76

75

75

74

74

73

72

71

70

69

68

67

66

65

64

63

62

61

60

59

58

57

56

55

54

53

52

51

50

49

48

47

46

45

44

43

42

41

40

38

37

36

35

85

84

83

82

81

80

79

78

77

76

75

74

200' RIVERFRONT
RESOURCE AREA

O
L

D
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 R

O
A

D

70

71

72

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

71

70

73747576

7778

79

8081

82

83

74

73

84

70

FFE 79.50

68

69

68

GARAGE
FFE 69.50

+
39.00

+LP 38.77

39.22 +

41

42

69

68

67

66

65

64

63

62

61

60

59

58

56

55

54

53

52

50

49

46

44

40

39

67

43

45

47

48

51

57

3% DOWN

6% UP

15%

22
%

18
%

PROVIDE NEGATIVE GRADE
PITCH DOWN FROM OLD
COUNTY ROAD TO LOW POINTCROSS P

ITC
H

ON D
RIV

EW
AY

PROPOSED PLANTING ALONG
DRIVEWAY TO MITIGATE
STORMWATER RUNOFF

PROPOSED PLANTING ALONG
DRIVEWAY TO MITIGATE
STORMWATER RUNOFF

DIRECTION OF
STORMWATER RUNOFF

PROPOSED PLANTING ALONG
DRIVEWAY TO MITIGATE
STORMWATER RUNOFF

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

51

52

53

54

57

58

59

60

61

63

64

65

67

68

69

50

55

56

62

66

N

S

W

E

1
2
5
°

125°

5
8
°

58°

S
U

N
R

IS
E

J
U

N
E

 2
1

S
U

N
S

E
T

J
U

N
E

 2
1

S
U

N
S

E
T

D
E

C
 2

1

S
U

N
R

IS
E

D
E

C
 2

1

DescriptionNo Date

Le
Bl

an
c 

Jo
n

es
 L

an
d

sc
ap

e 
A

rc
h

it
ec

ts
, I

n
c.

Revisions

TRURO, MA
33 OLD COUNTY ROAD

535 Albany Street No 5A

leblancjones.com

Boston, MA 02118
617.426.6475

Scale:

Project No: 2117

Date:

c

LEBLA
N

C
 JO

N
ES LA

N
D

SC
A

PE A
RC

H
ITEC

TS, IN
C

CURB CUT & DRIVEWAY
PLAN

1"=10'

01-12-22

CURB CUT APPLICATION1 01-12-22

N

L1

Agenda Item:  6C4

Chris.Lousos
Polygon

Chris.Lousos
Polygon

Chris.Lousos
Callout
DRIVEWAY ALTERNATE 2  - FIRST 100 FT10% SLOPE

Chris.Lousos
Callout
ORIGINAL DRIVEWAY -SLOPE VARIES MIN.15% SLOPEMAX 22% SLOPE

Chris.Lousos
Polygon

Chris.Lousos
Callout
DRIVEWAY ALTERNATE 2  - REST OF DRIVEWAY 20% SLOPE



                 Agenda Item:  6C5

January 15

January 15





Agenda Item:  6C6







126 Old County Road 

CURB CUT APPLICATION NARRATIVE 3/1/2022 

SATISFACTION OF REQUIREMENTS 

The Curb Cut Policy, Policy Memorandum #28, requires: 

“All curb cuts shall be located and constructed in such a manner so as to preclude: 

a. Damage to the Town or State road either at the time of construction or in the future;”

We will accomplish this through customary best construction practices, as well as utilization of a 

stamped, detailed engineered driveway plan, and create a 17.5’ negative slope area, as approved by DPW. 

“b. Drainage from private property onto the Town or State road;” 

We will accomplish this through the 17.5’ negative slope area; a trench drain and 5-chamber leaching 

system; and a slope stabilization and planting plan, all as approved by DPW, the Truro Health Agent, 

Truro Conservation Agent, and/or Truro Conservation Commission as applicable. Owners also intend to 

consider measures such as stone trench drain, step-swales etc. as may prove promising and feasible onsite, 

in consultation with the DPW Director and Conservation Agent under their ordinary field discretion. 

“c. Introduction of sand, soils, or other materials onto the Town or State road; and” 

This will be accomplished through the same methods indicated above, as well as by a paved driveway and 

curb cut surface, as required “to prevent erosion” in Exhibit 2 of the Curb Cut Policy. 

“d. Any other potential hazard to public safety as may be identified by the Director of the 

Department of Public Works and/or the Chief of Police.” 

The DPW Director and Chief of Police have visited the property and approved our application. In 

addition, we have addressed concerns expressed by the Fire Chief and DPW Director about access during 

or after snow emergencies by providing for a heated driveway surface, in addition to the paved surface. 

“All curb cuts will comply with the Town of Truro construction requirements, as noted on the 

attached information sheet and shown as Exhibit 2;” 

We have complied with Exhibit 2 requirements, including plans drawn to scale of 40’ = 1”; a list of all 

materials to be part of any construction within the Town or State layout; location of driveway “to the best 

advantage with regard to the road alignment, profile, sight distance conditions, road safety, and so forth”; 

single curb cut per property; and paving requirement (“hot mixed and bermed,” etc.). Our plan is drawn to 

comply with the radius requirement, subject to such customary minor adjustment as may be needed by the 

Estimator onsite. 

“the design standards shown under the Rules and Regulations, Section 2.5.8;” 

While the Two Year Deadline referenced here applies to public road construction within a Subdivision, 

not to private curb cuts on Approval Not Required (ANR) lots, it is our intention to complete construction 

of our curb cut within two years. 

“the Mass Highway permit requirements as applicable;  

Our curb cut does not require a Mass Highway permit. 

“and/or as required by the Director of the Department of Public Works.” 

Agenda Item:  6C7

p. 1



126 Old County Road   p. 2 

CURB CUT APPLICATION NARRATIVE   3/1/2022  

  
 

We submitted a new Curb Cut Application at the Director’s request, and our stamped regrading plan 

provides for the negative slope area he requested.  

Exhibit 1 Departmental approvals: We have all approvals (Police, DPW and Health & Conservation). 

Truro General Bylaws: Our 10’ wide driveway exceeds the with the 8’ minimum requirement under 1-

9-13-1, and height clearance will exceed the 14’ required under 1-9-13-3.  

We also expect the length of the driveway to achieve 14’ of “clearance of any obstacles including 

vegetation” referenced in 1-9-13-2. However, if the physical boundaries under actual site conditions 

present any limitation for any portion of the driveway length, we will in any case comply at all times with 

the alternative requirement of 1-9-13-4: “If boundaries do not allow full compliance with 1-9-13-1 and 1-

9-13-2, then the required width shall be reduced to the full width the current physical boundaries allow.”  

Greater detail on our compliance is included below in our responses to the specific questions conveyed to 

us by DPW Director Jarrod Cabral. 

  

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS 

1. Overall Topography and Driveway Position  

We were asked to begin with a discussion of the overall topography of the site. 

Below is the driveway site, looking East from Old County Road, prior to any construction: 

 

  



126 Old County Road   p. 3 

CURB CUT APPLICATION NARRATIVE   3/1/2022  

  
 

The left side of the picture shows the steeper, more heavily vegetated terrain with steadily rising 

elevations as you proceed North along Old County Road toward Provincetown: 

 

In the center, you see a more lightly vegetated, sandy area, nearer the southern property line: 

 

This location represents the shallowest and least intrusive path for the driveway. 



126 Old County Road   p. 4 

CURB CUT APPLICATION NARRATIVE   3/1/2022  

  
 

2. Alternative Driveway Designs  

We were asked to discuss “any alternative driveway designs we considered prior to the final plan.” 

Regarding the surface material, we intend to use pavement.  

This respects the requirement for pavement in the Curb Cut Policy, “to prevent erosion.” 

We rejected the alternative design of loose gravel. This was in part to prevent erosion, as well as to 

improve traction and avoid the hazard of loose stones migrating into the public roadway. 

Alternatives such as three-eighths piece stone macadams, gel-embedded stone, permeable pavers, 

geogrid, chip-seal and similar approaches were rejected as well. 

Despite their aesthetic appeal, multiple engineers/contractors report that coarse surfaces such as these can 

start shedding stones over a 3-5 year timeframe. 

This compromises traction, creates a maintenance condition, and renders the surface impervious as 

particles accumulate. 

Regarding the overall position and form of the driveway, the Southerly position is optimal. 

This topographical map depicts the elevations of the entire site. 

The tight grouping of lines on the Left (orange circle) represents the steeper part of the site: 

 



126 Old County Road   p. 5 

CURB CUT APPLICATION NARRATIVE   3/1/2022  

  
 

The less densely packed lines in the bottom corner (green circle) are where the foot of the driveway 

stands today: 

 

Placing the driveway within the shallower Southerly natural grade minimizes the driveway grade. 

Any alternative design placement further South is impossible due to the property line. 

Any alternative further East would still require traversing the hill, intrude much deeper into the site, 

and/or require unacceptable levels of additional digging into the hillside. 

Any further North and West would require a steeper ascent (the orange circle above), and extensive 

retaining walls disruptive to multiple trees due to the amount of displaced earth.  

In particular, a “switchback” design criss-crossing the Western face would decimate the entire parcel 

along Old County Road, with unattractive and prohibitively expensive engineered retaining walls. 

 

 

 

 



126 Old County Road   p. 6 

CURB CUT APPLICATION NARRATIVE   3/1/2022  

  
 

Such a design would intrude heavily into the wetlands buffer zone, which our plan protects by means of 

our approved Work Limit Area shown below: 

 

 

It is also doubtful that we could meet radius requirements for turns, or even how much the grade could be 

reduced given those requirements. 

To summarize: Given the site characteristics, the current position and path for the driveway-- 

- minimize disruption to the more heavily vegetated part of the Western face of the site; 

- minimize the extent of the driveway’s intrusion into the site in any direction; and 

- follow the path of least resistance, along the shallower slope near the southerly line. 

 



126 Old County Road   p. 7 

CURB CUT APPLICATION NARRATIVE   3/1/2022  

  
 

This position and path were therefore chosen for the application previously approved for Mr. Lown, 

shown in the topo below; for the current construction driveway as built last summer; and in our stamped 

regrading plan, with some reduction in overall grade, as well as to achieve a negative grade to the lot line. 

 

 

Lown Plan—2020 

 

 

3. Grade Comparison  

We were asked to address “the overall maximum grade percentage increase from Old County 

Road; the existing grade; and the new proposed grade.” 

First, the overall maximum from the Road, based on the natural topography. 

At the steepest part of the site, the natural course of the hill rises from a road elevation of 34’ to the site’s 

high point of 70’, over a straight-line perpendicular distance of 88’, for a raw natural slope of 41%. 

Obviously that is unacceptable, and the main reason we rejected putting the driveway there. 

By following the more southerly course, and turning toward the below-grade garage at 60’, we were able 

to achieve the 28% that you see onsite today. 



126 Old County Road   p. 8 

CURB CUT APPLICATION NARRATIVE   3/1/2022  

  
 

In our regrading plan, the driveway will turn at the considerably lower elevation of approximately 52’, 

which allows us to achieve a grade of 25% to the turning point, declining to 17% after that. 

 

 

Funke Plan—2022 

The shallower grade of the slope as you near the top of the hill, combined with the Safe Harbor plan for 

naturally vegetating the side slopes discussed next, make this possible.  

The owners also accepted a primary arrival point and 1-car garage in the basement level, rather than at 

grade. This effectively reduces the climb required over the same linear distance by nearly an entire story. 

 

4. Slope Stabilization and Planting Plan  

After the driveway is complete, the majority of the surface area of the construction site you see today will 

be vegetated, with the exception of the standard 10’ width of the paved driveway itself. 

Slopes will curve naturally to rejoin the natural elevation of the site along the length of the driveway. 

The image below depicts the first part of the multi-phase strategy, which was developed and is planned to 

be executed by Gordon Peabody at Safe Harbor Environmental Management: 

 



126 Old County Road   p. 9 

CURB CUT APPLICATION NARRATIVE   3/1/2022  

  
 

 

This phase will focus on slope stabilization accomplished through benching, jute netting, and sock 

placement. In terms of vegetation, it will include a three-seed mix to rapidly create groundcover. 

The second growing season will diversify the planting plan to include woody stems and plugs: 

 

This phase will include 7 different varietals including bearberry, bear oak, yarrow and beach plum. 



126 Old County Road   p. 10 

CURB CUT APPLICATION NARRATIVE   3/1/2022  

  
 

Protocols will include ladders on the slope. Progress will be reviewable annually by the Conservation 

Commission, and served by a well-based irrigation system if necessary. 

The entire slope stabilization and planting plan as approved by Cons. Comm. is included in your packet. 

 

5. Reducing the Grade  

We were asked why we cannot reduce the grade any further. 

Our grading plan reduces the current grade of 28% to 25%, along a flat and straight course. 

Digging any further would require a deeper cut in the hill, and higher side slopes, than the Town would 

accept, or any owner would tolerate in terms of expense, home placement and loss of natural topography. 

For example, even a 20% grade would require digging at least 12’ deeper as you turn toward the garage: 

 

That represents an enormous volume of soil to be removed from the site.  

For this reason, although it is theoretically possible, even a modest further reduction in grade beyond the 

one in our engineered plan is simply not achievable in any practical sense. An 8% or 10% grade would be 

even more dramatically disruptive.  

Part of the limitation is the need to create room for the 17.5’ of negative slope at the base.  

If this were unnecessary, the entire red line could shift to the left, so that it starts at Old County Road.  

The driveway could be approximately 3’-4’ higher along much of its entire length, allowing a 5% 

reduction in grade with considerably less soil removal. 

However, retaining this negative slope area is crucial both to enhance stormwater retention and for safety. 

It is the space needed to stop a car, look both ways, and exit safely onto Old County Road. 

These benefits greatly outweigh any further modest reduction in grade, which in any case is unacceptable 

for the reasons outlined above. After much consideration, culminating in a carefully engineered regrading 

plan, 25% is therefore not a “round number,” but represents the best specific grade by which to safely 

access the site without excessive excavation. 



126 Old County Road   p. 11 

CURB CUT APPLICATION NARRATIVE   3/1/2022  

  
 

6. Drainage and Stormwater Management 

Modeling and managing drainage from stormwater runoff as it relates to the wetland was a primary 

concern of the Conservation Commission. Runoff calculations were based on a severe rain of 5” per hour: 

 

Water will be captured by an owner-serviceable trench drain running the width of the driveway: 

 

This is sufficient to contain runoff from a 25-year flood within the driveway environment, have it exit the 

driveway via the trench drain, then empty into a leach galley drainage system. 



126 Old County Road   p. 12 

CURB CUT APPLICATION NARRATIVE   3/1/2022  

  
 

It is a commercial-grade system, and a significant step up from the cobble apron and catch basin in Mr. 

Lown’s Curb Cut Materials List. It also complements the negative-pitch area that DPW directed us to 

include, offering significant redundancy. 

The Drainage Plan has been updated with a note to provide for an engineered stone trench. This would be 

purely additive to the plan already approved by DPW, Conservation Agent and Cons Comm.  

It is our intention to evaluate actual conditions as construction progresses, and to consider this and other 

potential supplemental mitigations in the final execution of the driveway, in consultation with the DPW 

Director and Conservation Agent within their ordinary discretion onsite. While the engineered trench is 

one option, possibly supplemented by check-dam stones at regular intervals, natural alternatives such as 

step-swales might serve the same purpose with less disruption.  

Owners will continue to explore details of the driveway execution that might improve on what has already 

been approved at the Departmental level, and are committed to implementing options that appear 

promising and feasible in the field as work progresses. 

We were asked to address long-term maintenance. 

First, the chambers should not require service for many years. Their capacity is substantial, with a septic-

system-like design that limits the transit of sand or debris beyond the initial chamber. 

Second, the service need will be evident when water starts to traverse the drain instead of diverting into it. 

Finally, servicing can be performed by a single adult by picking up the 4 x 4 x 4 section grates, then 

shoveling out the sand or debris with a regular shovel. 

Owners are happy to accept a condition that they will service the drain as soon as any stormwater begins 

to traverse the trench drain, as DPW crews do every day; and in any case, to inspect and service the 

system as needed on no less than an annual basis.  

 

7. Comparison of Funke and Lown Plans 

 Proposed Funke Plan Approved Lown Plan 

Regrading Plan Stamped plan for 25% grade None provided 

Negative Pitch Area 17.5’ for safety & H2O retention None provided 

Primary Arrival Elevation 60’ (below grade) 69’ (at grade) (adjusted for 

consistency w/NAVD88 datum) 

Primary Stormwater 

Management 

Negative pitch area and 

commercial-grade trench drain 

with 25-year storm capacity, 

serviced annually by owners 

Cobble apron & catch basin 

Potential Additional Stormwater 

Mitigation Measures (to be 

considered in actual 

construction conditions in 

consultation w/DPW Director 

and Conservation Agent) 

Stone trench(es), check-dams, 

step-swales, canting/crowning 

of driveway surface  

None provided 



126 Old County Road   p. 13 

CURB CUT APPLICATION NARRATIVE   3/1/2022  

  
 

Slope Stabilization & Planting 

Plan 

2-season Safe Harbor strategy 

reviewable by Cons. Comm. 

None provided 

Driveway Material Paved per Town requirement; 

heated for winter safety 

Ambiguous; either paved or 

gravel 

Curb Cut Area Material Paved per Town requirement Gravel/cobble 

 



Agenda Item:  6C8









Agenda Item:  6C9





















Curb Cut

This Contract to Purchase is contingent upon the Sellers securing an affirmative 
determination from the Town of Truro for a driveway curb cut to be installed at the 
southern-most corner of the lot as it meets Old County Road, as depicted in the 
preliminary FELCO plan.  Said determination to be granted by October 16, 2020.  In the 
event the town does not grant such a curb cut within the specified period of time the 
Buyer may withdraw from this agreement and this Offer to Purchase and all other 
subsequent agreements shall become null and void without further recourse between 
the parties hereto and all deposits shall be returned forthwith.

Initials:

___ ___ ___ ___

Buyers Sellers

Authentisign ID: 5604AC69-B7AF-47D8-8661-EE1DFA0BE100Authentisign ID: 5604AC69-B7AF-47D8-8661-EE1DFA0BE100

PURCHASE OFFER LANGUAGE--SEP. 13, 2020

Agenda Item:  6C10

John Keller
Authentisign Accepted Initial
This Initial was accepted by John Keller on 9/12/2020 8:14:51 PM EDT from the IpAddress: 76.19.231.70

Jonathan R. Funke
Authentisign Accepted Initial
This Initial was accepted by Jonathan R. Funke on 9/13/2020 1:38:23 AM EDT from the IpAddress: 174.194.210.147

Kelly Ann Macmanus
Authentisign Accepted Initial
This Initial was accepted by Kelly Ann Macmanus on 9/13/2020 1:51:52 AM EDT from the IpAddress: 174.244.179.72

Larry Lown
Authentisign Accepted Initial
This Initial was accepted by Larry Lown on 9/13/2020 3:52:44 AM EDT from the IpAddress: 76.19.231.70

jrfun
Highlight



1 

TOWN OF TRURO
 Select Board Agenda Item 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 

REQUESTOR:  Noelle Scoullar, Executive Assistant 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  November 10, 2020 

ITEM:   Curb Cut Application for 126 Old County Road 

EXPLANATION:  Applicant has submitted a curb cut application for 126 Old County Road.  Land 
is for sale and a potential buyer or current owners may end up building on the property. 

FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Applicant will need to reapply for curb cut with amendments 
recommended by Select Board for approval. 

SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to Approve the Curb Cut for 126 Old County Road and Authorize 
the Chair to Sign. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Curb Cut Application
2. MESA determination letter
3. Applicant letter
4. Site Plan

LOWN CURB CUT APPLICATION -- NOV. 10, 2020

January 15

jrfun
Highlight



EXHIBIT 1 

TOWN OF TRURO 
APPLICATION FOR A CURB CUT PERMIT 

� This permit application must be accompanied by a plan. If this permit is being applied for by someone 
other than the Owner of the property, the owner's signature must appear at the bottom of the application. 

Date: September 09, 2020

To the Board of Selectmen 
24 Town Hall Road 
P. 0. Box 2030 
Truro, MA 02666 

Re: APPLICATION FOR A CURB CUT 

Dear Board Members: 

The applicant(s) hereby make application for a curb cut as follows:

ADM1rll5TRATM.:: Of-FlC[ 

TOt'N Of TRl.m) 

Name(s): Larry E Lown & John Keller(Lown Larry E & Keller John(LE)RMNDR:Lown Larry E 2010 SP,TR)

Address: 120 Old County Road, PO Box 697 Truro, MA 02666

Curb Cut Street Location: 126 Old County Road

Affected Town or State road: Truro
----------------------

Truro Assessor's Map Number: 59 Parcel Number: 91 --- ---

Name of contractor: not applicable at present

Reason/explanation: Right now this land is for sale. Either the potential buyer or we may end up building on it,

but the exact date of construction is not yet certain. See attached letter for details on curb cut. 

I/we hereby agree to the terms and conditions as outlined in this policy and attached Exhibits: 

Applicant's Signatur� C � 
Owner's Signature (if different): ______________ Date:?� �/� � c>�o

Owner's Address (if different): ____________________ _ 

January 15









jrfun
Highlight

jrfun
Highlight



jrfun
Highlight

jrfun
Highlight

jrfun
Highlight









 

Page 1 of 7 
 

TOWN OF TRURO 
TRURO SELECT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
November 10, 2020 
Remote Meeting 
 
Select Board Members Present:  Chair-Robert Weinstein, Vice Chair-Kristen Reed, Clerk-Susan Areson, 
Janet Worthington, Stephanie Rein 
 
Others Present:  Acting Town Manager-Jamie Calise, Assistant Town Manager-Kelly Clark, Health Agent-
Emily Beebe, DPW Director-Jarrod Cabral, Board of Health Chair-Tracey Rose, Christine Meade, Nancy 
Medoff, Ann Courtney, Eric Shapiro, Building Commissioner-Rich Stevens, Larry Lown, Chair of Charter 
Review Committee-Robert Panessiti 
 
Chair Weinstein called the meeting to order at 5:20pm.  He read off instructions on how people could 
provide comment and also provided the URL for people to view or participate. 
 
Public Comment-None 
 
Public Hearings-None 
 
Board/Committee/Commission Appointments 
Christine Meade introduced herself.  She has applied to serve on the Bike and Walkways Committee.  
She gave a brief summary of why she wanted to join the Committee. 
Member Areson made a motion to appoint Christine Meade to the Bike and Walkways Committee as 
an alternate whose appointment expires June 30, 2021. 
Member Reed seconded. 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Nancy Medoff introduced herself.  She has applied to serve on the Charter Review Committee.  She 
spoke of her skills and her love of the community. 
Member Areson made a motion to appoint Nancy Medoff to the Charter Review Committee to a 
three-year unexpired term ending June 30, 2021. 
Member Reed seconded. 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Ann Courtney introduced herself and gave a brief summary of other committees she’s served on and 
explained her interest in the Beach Commission. 
Member Areson made a motion to appoint Ann Courtney to the Beach Commission for a three-year 
term expiring June 30, 2023. 
Member Worthington seconded. 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Tabled Items-None 
 
Select Board Action 
Year-round condominium conversion for 503 and 522 Shore Road-Sutton Place Condominium 
Health Agent Beebe stated that they have four units going to year-round status and Sutton Place is 
being represented by Mr. Eric Shapiro.  Everything is in order.  The documents have been provided by 

 
MINUTES -- SELECT BOARD, NOV. 10

January 15



 

Page 2 of 7 
 

the association as required.  All inspections and signoffs were completed.  Building Commissioner 
Stevens said that everything was in order.  Health Agent Beebe stated that all units have been 
renovated/updated so there were no issues with the units going forward for year-round status.  Next, 
Building Commissioner Stevens will issue occupancy permits for these four units, which will signify that 
they are indeed year-round.  The other units will remain seasonal. 
Member Areson made a motion to approve the year-round use and removal of the seasonal 
covenants for Sutton Place Condominiums, located at 503 and 522 Shore Road. 
Member Rein seconded. 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Update on Covid-19 
Health Agent Beebe would like to sort out, and simplify, the more recent orders from the Governor. 

• The table is set with the stay at home advisory.  The advisory is not a curfew, but it is an advisory 
that folks need to be home by 10pm and stay home until 5am.  Leaving home to go to work, go 
to school, or for essential tasks is allowed.   

• Order Number 55-Face Coverings in Public Spaces has now been updated as it is now not 
optional.  You must have a face covering on when you are outside of the house, in public, 
whether you are indoors or outdoors.  There is now enforcement which is more clearly spelled 
out for the Department of Public Health and local Boards of Health with assistance from State 
and local police with fines. 

• There is also a shift in the exemptions.  As an employer, you can require your employees to 
provide proof of a medical exemption.  The proof doesn’t need to be detailed. Schools may also 
require it from their students. 

• Order Number 54-Limits on Gatherings is hard to simplify as there is a lot of detail in it.  It hinges 
with the Public Health Advisory.  All gatherings, no matter the size or the location, have to end 
and people have to disperse by 9:30pm.  Exceptions are religious and political gatherings.  Face 
coverings are required at all public gatherings.  Face coverings are encouraged at private 
residences but only required where non household members are present in gatherings 
exceeding 10.   

o Social distancing/physical distancing of at least 6 feet at all events is required. 
o If holding a small party at your home, there can be no more than 10 people and if it’s 

held outdoors you can have no more than 25 people. 
o If you are holding a party at a venue (indoors) it can be no more than 25 people. 
o An event being held outdoors is capped at 100 people, but if there will be more than 50 

people attending you are to notify the Health Department. 
o Any time anyone is associated with an attendee (or worker) at an event venue with a 

positive test result they are required to notify the local Board of Health.  They are also 
required to cooperate with contact tracing. 

• Order Number 53-Requiring early closing for certain businesses and activities and limiting hours 
for alcohol.  The categories in this order are restaurants, recreational facilities, indoor and 
outdoor event venues, fitness centers and health clubs.  They must abide by a mandatory 
nighttime closing period which is 9:30pm.  Reopening is not allowed until 5:00am the following 
day.  This order does not apply to religious services or political demonstrations. 

• Restaurants can continue to sell take-out food, but they cannot sell alcohol after 9:30pm. 
• If you are at a restaurant and it’s 9:00pm, you can finish your meal, but you need to be out by 

10:00pm.  Restaurants cannot seat anyone after 9:30pm.   
 



 

Page 3 of 7 
 

Health Agent Beebe stated that Covid cases are increasing.  Barnstable County picked up 11 new cases 
yesterday.  The County’s case count is 2,150 with 186 deaths.  Massachusetts does a lot of testing and 
has the highest testing per thousand rates in the Country.  Numbers are going up as we move indoors.  
We need to keep our interactions with folks outside as much as possible.  We have to be mindful of 
ventilation and keeping visitations with others inside to short periods of time.  Having a safe 
Thanksgiving comes with some takeaways; 

• If you have to travel, be mindful of the Travel Order.  If you’re travelling to a lower-risk state, 
you’re okay (check the status of Lower-Risk States at mass.gov).  You can travel to a higher-risk 
state, but you then must abide by the travel restrictions on your way back in to Massachusetts 
(get a Covid test or quarantine for 14 days). 

• If you are going to be hanging out with other people that you don’t live with, be sure to wear a 
mask, wash your hands, and keep your distance.  Try to do small groups and shorten the time 
with folks outside of your “family bubble”.  Ventilation is important and if you can move your 
gathering outdoors, do so. 

 
Health Agent Beebe answered questions regarding testing in Massachusetts. 
Chair Weinstein urged people to take advantage of the virtual world and that they demand that the half 
a million dollars for Barnstable County testing be released immediately. 
Member Reed has friends in other communities in Massachusetts who are moving back in phases.  She 
gathers these Orders are to get people to remain vigilant as numbers go up.  She asked if Health Agent 
Beebe has heard Barnstable County (or any of the Cape and Islands) mention moving back in phases.  
Health Agent Beebe stated that she does know the State is changing the metrics of how they classify 
different communities.  She can get Member Reed more information and talk offline. 
Mr. Lown asked if there are guidelines from the Town or the State about how to deal with people who 
refuse to wear a mask when doing Town business.  Health Agent Beebe continues to look at these as 
opportunities to educate people who are not feeling like mask-wearing applies to them.  The way this 
new masking order is worded, there is enforcement attached to it that’s tighter than it’s been in the 
past.  She thinks that public pressure is going to help.  She also said that people could let the Health 
Department know. 
Member Areson is concerned about the “mask-shaming” and yelling that some people have 
experienced.  We don’t know about someone’s underlying condition.  We are not the police and we 
have to keep that in mind.  Enforcement needs to come from the people in charge of that enforcement.  
Health Agent Beebe agrees.  She also suggested that it can be a discussion without it being a shaming 
discussion. 
Health Agent Beebe wanted people to know that she and Health Agent Hillary Lemos from Wellfleet will 
be holding a session before Thanksgiving where people can call in.  The discussion will most likely be 
focused on schools and people can ask questions. 
Member Reed asked if Interim Town Manager Calise had anything to add to the discussion.  Interim 
Town Manager Calise stated that Health Agent Beebe did a great job laying out the new orders by the 
State.  He strongly encourages voluntary compliance and education as that’s where the answer is.  
Resistance leads to confrontation and confrontation leads to tragedy. 
Member Worthington asked if there’s been any uptick in Covid in the communities of Provincetown, 
Truro, and Wellfleet.  Health Agent Beebe is not sure of Provincetown’s numbers and Wellfleet’s 
numbers just had a bit of a bump.  Wellfleet has 3 active cases and Truro has 2. 
 
 
 
Discussion on Curb Cut Application Process 



 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Building Commissioner Stevens laid out the process.  Someone will obtain a building permit application, 
which includes a checklist.  The last item on the checklist is a question asking if the Applicant needs a 
curb cut.  If they check off “yes” then they proceed from there.  The Building Department does their best 
to determine whether the Applicant needs a curb cut.  If the Applicant doesn’t check off that box, the 
Department will ascertain whether the structure is an addition or a new structure and determine if a 
curb cut application would be required. 
DPW Director Cabral thinks one of the problems is that when an Applicant checks off “yes” or “no” for a 
curb cut, they are not aware of the policy.  After he spoke with Kevin Shea, and people from Ambrose, it 
was discovered that they weren’t aware that the cub cut application was required because there was an 
existing curb cut there already.  He thinks that if the Building Department includes the Curb Cut 
Application and Policy with the Building Permit Application 100% of the time then nothing will be 
missed.  DPW Director Cabral also added in a space for email contact information, cell phone 
information for contractors and homeowner, and he added in Conservation Agent Beebe as an 
additional person to sign off because a lot of the areas where these curb cuts are located are within her 
jurisdiction.  Building Commissioner Stevens feels everything should go to the DPW where the Director 
can make the determination as to whether a curb cut is necessary or not.  DPW Director Cabral is 
concerned about logistics.  Assistant Town Manager Clark suggested using technology to streamline the 
process.  Chair Weinstein pointed everyone to Policy Memorandum #28 which states that any 
application for a building permit that includes a proposed curb cut will first require an approved curb cut 
permit.  There is no need to reinvent the wheel.  There is a clear process to be followed.  The Building 
Department has to make it clear to all applicants; if they need a curb cut then they need to follow this 
procedure in order to be issued a building permit. 
 
Vacancy List for Boards/Committees and Commissions 
Member Areson and Member Reed met last week with Chairs of three committees; Susan Howe of the 
Commission on Disabilities, Anne Greenbaum of the Planning Board, and Carol Harris of the Climate 
Action Committee.  There were several upshots of that meeting. 

• The citizen group, One Truro, had created a flyer about a year ago for openings on Boards and 
Commissions.  Member Areson submitted a chart which is based on the work of One Truro and 
Anne Greenbaum.  The goal is to update this chart and it is a work in progress. 

• They talked about reaching out to every one of the committee Chairs to have a consistent 
approach to what the committee is, how often it meets, how many members, and whether 
there are any special requirements needed to serve.  The Select Board would create an email to 
send to the committee Chairs to ask them to provide this information.  Member Areson 
mentioned that clarity is needed in the Charter language. 

• Member Areson noted that Member Reed and other members in the group have been working 
on a Policy Handbook. 

Member Reed continued the discussion, stating that the objective of the unofficial group is to bridge the 
gap between the Town’s citizens and Board/Committee/Commission vacancies.  One of the efforts of 
the group is to have more information on the website that is available to citizens, and to be sure the 
information is correct and accurate.  A responsibility of the Select Board is to look at Charges for the 
committees and review/edit them.  Member Reed has been working on a handbook which will be given 
to people when they are sworn in.  The handbook will go over Open Meeting Law, ethics, laws related to 
serving on a committee, as well as details of how to set and follow an agenda.  In addition to the 
handbook being given to new committee members, she’d like it available on the Town’s website as well.  
Member Reed feels that having more things on the website, accessible to people, makes things easier 
and will hopefully be one of the tools in the toolbox that will encourage citizens to join committees.  She 
also included a copy of an online application to serve which is used in Eastham. It is more thorough and 



 

Page 5 of 7 
 

asks more questions.  She’d like the Board’s support to authorize Interim Town Manager to direct staff 
to look into reaching out to Eastham to find out how much software would cost, and if the online 
application is something we are interested in. 
Assistant Town Manager Clark stated that there would be no cost as Truro purchased the software at 
the same time as Eastham as part of a joint grant.  Member Reed asked for the Board’s support to have 
an online application to serve on the Town’s website. 
Assistant Town Manager Clark said it may be helpful to let people know if we are committed to 
continuing holding virtual meetings for some of these boards and committees.  She suggested getting a 
recommendation from committee chairs as to whether they’d like to continue meeting virtually after 
the pandemic is over, or a recommendation that they’d like to start meeting in person.  That 
information might help the recruitment effort.  Member Reed stated that it will be up to Governor Baker 
to decide whether boards and committees can meet in person after the pandemic.  Member Areson said 
that if Governor Baker does not approve virtual meetings Statewide after the pandemic, we could seek a 
Special Act of the Legislature (which would require Town Meeting approval).  We would petition the 
Legislature to approve this law just for our community.  The other big question which has come up a lot 
is, can people who don’t live here full-time serve on committees (thus opening a larger pool of 
candidates to serve)?  Chair Weinstein pointed out that on the Eastham application there is a note 
which states in order to be appointed to a regulatory committee the applicant must be a registered 
voter and they may only serve on one regulatory body at a time. 
Member Rein mentioned that when looking at applicants for the Walsh Property Committee, more 
people were willing to join knowing that they could participate from home or another location other 
than Truro.  She asked Member Areson if the document received was a complete listing of all the 
Committees.  Member Areson thought it was complete but will review it.  Member Rein then asked if a 
part-time resident could serve on an advisory committee?  She would love to get an answer to that.  As 
a liaison, one of Member Rein’s committees asked if there would be an option in the future for chairs of 
committees and commissions to have a Town email address?  Member Areson stated she was going to 
ask Interim Town Manager Calise or IT Director Wennerberg to pursue that, as both she and Member 
Reed have been asked that question as well.  Member Reed said she’d asked former Town Manager 
Palmer about this and was told that it came down to cost, staff, and time, but she thinks it’s worth 
looking into.  Assistant Town Manager let the Board know that IT Director Wennerberg quoted the cost 
of email addresses as $8.00 per address per month.  
Charter Review Chair Panessiti remembers going through the section of the Charter that pertains to 
board and committee appointments.  Section 2.10 clearly states that appointments are approved by the 
Select Board and if the Select Board doesn’t appoint within 45 days of notification then the body itself 
would appoint.  They can certainly go through the Charter again to see if there is anything they’ve 
missed.  Member Reed asked Charter Review Chair Panessiti to look over the document she created and 
then go through the parts where she could benefit from more clarity.  Charter Review Chair Panessiti 
will add it to their next agenda for review. 
 
Consent Agenda 
Member Worthington had a question regarding item B.  Cloverleaf Land Development Option Agreement 
Extension.  She wanted an explanation of what it was.  Chair Weinstein stated the development option 
was issued on an annual basis and this is asking to extend that for a defined period of time.  Town 
Counsel reviewed it and updated the extension, there was no change to the language of the option.  
Member Worthington asked if the option was the option to develop the land?  Chair Weinstein 
confirmed that was correct.  When the State offered the land to the community, the provison was that 
the land be only used for this kind of development and the option addresses that.  Member 
Worthington thinks that anything like this should be on the agenda under Select Board Action.  Member 



 

Page 6 of 7 
 

Reed agrees, but is reluctant to table the item, she doesn’t want to obstruct it if it’s time sensitive.  
Interim Town Manager Calise stated that back a few weeks ago the Board asked him to seek an 
extension on the option agreement since it was expiring at the end of the year.  Member Worthington 
asked if this was something that would have to be repeatedly upped, and the reason why?  Chair 
Weinstein said that the original agreement had an expiration date of May 6, 2020 and this extension 
would run this agreement from December 31, 2020 to December 31, 2021.  The Land Development 
Agreement that was originally dated in 2019 was an agreement between the Town and the Developer.  
The agreement was entered into with the unanimous consent of the Select Board between the 
Developer and the Town.  This is asking that the agreement be extended to a calendar date certain.  
Assistant Town Manager Clark stated that the reason for this is Covid related.  Hearings had to be 
postponed and the ZBA process got pushed back.  Member Areson said that the reason for extending 
the deadline is because the Developer doesn’t have the Comprehensive Permit.  She does agree with 
Member Worthington and thinks that any time anything related to the Cloverleaf comes up it should be 
a separate agenda item. 
 
Member Areson stated she had some corrections on the minutes. 
 
Member Reed made a motion to approve the consent agenda as printed with Member Areson’s 
corrections on the minutes of August 25, 2020. 
Member Areson seconded. 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
Select Board Reports/Comments 
Member Reed wished to extend her deepest sympathies to Assistant Town Manager Clark and the 
Sullivan Family for the passing of Kathleen Sullivan.  Chair Weinstein added that Kathleen was a valued 
member of the Town operations and became a friend to many. 
Member Areson wished to mention that the Town Moderator has appointed Steven Roderick to the 
Finance Committee. 
Member Rein wished to thank the DPW and DPW Director Cabral for leaving the trash receptacles at 
some of the local beaches, as requested at a recent Board meeting.  She has seen people using them at 
Ballston Beach. 
 
Town Manager Report 
Interim Town Manager Calise stated that all Department Heads received their budget packets on 
November 6, 2020. 
 
Next Meeting Agenda:  November 17 
Interim Town Manager Calise reviewed the proposed agenda. 
 
Member Reed made a motion to adjourn at 7:23pm. 
Member Areson seconded. 
So voted; 5-0-0, motion carries. 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 



 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 
 
Noelle L. Scoullar, Executive Assistant 
 
 
______________________________ 
Acting Town Manager, Jamie Calise 
Under the Authority of the Truro Select Board 
 
Public Records material of 11.10.2020 

1. Application to Serve-Christine Meade 
2. Application to Serve-Nancy Medoff 
3. Application to Serve-Ann Courtney 
4. Application for year-round condominium conversion for 503 and 522 Shore Road-Sutton Place 

Condominium 
5. Order #53 
6. Order #54 
7. Order #55 
8. Stay at Home Advisory 
9. Select Board Policy #28-Application for Curb Cut 
10. Town of Eastham Volunteer Application 
11. Town of Truro Listing of Town Officials, Boards and Committees 
12. Curb Cut Application for 9 Mill Pond Road 
13. Memorandum by DPW Director Cabral 
14. Curb Cut Application for 126 Old County Road 
15. MESA determination letter 
16. Applicant Letter 
17. Site Plan 
18. Application to Serve-Eliza Harned 
19. Amendment No. 2 to Land Development Option Agreement 
20. Memorandum from Alice Boyd, Grant Administrator 
21. Truro Subordination Agreement Letter 
22. Select Board Minutes of August 25, 2020 



LOWN CURB CUT APPLICATION -- SIGNED APPROVAL - NOV. 16, 2020

jrfun
Highlight





 
 

1023773.v1 8

32. By executing this Agreement, the BUYER and the SELLER hereby grant to their attorneys,         
the actual authority to bind them for the sole limited purpose of allowing them to grant extensions 
and the SELLER and the BUYER shall be able to rely upon signatures of said attorneys as binding 
unless they have actual knowledge that the principals have disclaimed the authority granted herein to 
bind them.   
 
33. BUYER acknowledges and agrees that SELLER shall record a Termination of Easement for that 
certain Easement recorded with the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds in Book 10392, Page prior 
to Closing and that BUYER accepts the Premises without any claim, right or title to such Easement. 
SELLER’s duty to perform under this Agreement is conditional on the Termination of Easement 
being recorded prior to Closing. 
 
 
  
NOTICE: This is a legal document that creates binding obligations.  If not understood, 

consult an attorney. 
 
 
Larry E. Lown 2010 Special Trust, 
 
 
_______________________________________________ 
Larry E. Lown, Individually and as Trustee 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
John G. Keller, Individually and as Trustee 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jonathan R. Funke, Buyer     
 
 
______________________________________ 
Kelly Macmanus Funke, Buyer 
 
 

Authentisign ID: 3A604639-9372-4A94-996F-5759714AC58CAuthentisign ID: 3A604639-9372-4A94-996F-5759714AC58C

PURCHASE & SALE -- RELINQUISHING EASEMENT

John Keller
Authentisign Accepted Signature
This Signature was accepted by John Keller on 12/4/2020 6:00:44 PM EST from the IpAddress: 75.67.137.45

Larry Lown
Authentisign Accepted Signature
This Signature was accepted by Larry Lown on 12/4/2020 8:10:34 PM EST from the IpAddress: 75.67.137.45

jrfun
Highlight



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

TERMINATION OF EASEMENT OVER 120 OLD COUNTY ROAD

jrfun
Highlight



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



APPROVED LOWN SITE & SEWAGE PLAN -- DEC. 16, 2020

jrfun
Highlight







1

jrfunke@outlook.com

From: Jarrod Cabral <jcabral@truro-ma.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, July 28, 2021 9:54 AM
To: Brian Hopkins
Subject: RE: Driveway DPW

Hello, Yes I have that on file with a sketch depicting the topo, this application was approved was approved. The updated 
sketch with the septic system shows the driveway paved, with no stone or cobble this would be considered an alteration 
of the approved curb cut.  
 
I’ll send out an email to all – Thanks - Jarrod    
 

From: Brian Hopkins <brian@augustusconstruction.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, July 28, 2021 9:36 AM 
To: Jarrod Cabral <jcabral@truro-ma.gov> 
Subject: Fwd: Driveway DPW 
 

Jarod, 
This shows the catch bason on it.   Could you revivew this and give me call? 
Brian 

 
--  
Augustus Construction 
Office  1-508-487-7177 
Fax     1-508-487-7109 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the 
sender and know the content is safe. 

J. CABRAL EMAIL REQUIRING NEW CURB CUT APPLICATION

jrfun
Highlight



9/15/2021

FUNKE CURB CUT APPLICATION -- SEP. 15, 2021

jrfun
Highlight















FUNKE REQUEST FOR DETERMINATION - OCT. 12, 2021

jrfun
Highlight





















  

Truro Select Board  
Tuesday, February 8, 2022 
Regular Meeting-5:00pm 

 
 

 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Review/Approve and Authorize Signature: 

1. None 
B. Review and Approve Appointment Renewals:  None 
C. Review and Approve Application for a Curb Cut:  126 Old County Road; 33 Old County Road 
D. Review and Approve Select Board Minutes:  Regular Minutes of 01.11.2022 

8. Select Board Reports/Comments 
9. Town Manager Report 

10. Next Meeting Agenda: Regular Meeting-February 22, 2022  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Noelle Scoullar, Executive Assistant 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  February 8, 2022 
 
ITEM:  Two Curb Cut Applications 
 
EXPLANATION:  The first Curb Cut Application has been submitted for 126 Old County Road.  
This is a new home build. 
The second Curb Cut Application has been submitted for 33 Old County Road.  This is a 
proposal for a new driveway to a proposed dwelling. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Curb cut will not be permitted. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  (1)Motion to approve the curb cut for 126 Old County Road. 
(2)Motion to approve the curb cut for 33 Old County Road. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Curb Cut Application for 126 Old County Road with plans and planting plan. 
2. Curb Cut Application for 33 Old County Road with plans. 

 

Consent Agenda Item:  7C 
 
 
 
 

FUNKE CURB CUT APPLICATION -- SELECT BOARD PACKET, FEB. 8, 2022

jrfun
Highlight



January 15

January 15

January 15



























1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Noelle Scoullar, Executive Assistant 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  March 8, 2022 
 
ITEM:  Proposed recommendations to Truro Charter by the Charter Review Committee 
 
EXPLANATION:  Charter Review Committee Chair Brian Boyle will be present to answer any 
questions from the Select Board regarding the recommendations of the Charter Review 
Committee.  A memo to the Select Board from December 2021 in reference to these 
recommendations is included. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  N/A 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  None 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Charter recommendations memo 

 

Agenda Item:  6D 
 
 
 
 



         Agenda Item:  6D1 
To:      Members of the Select Board 
Re:      Recommended amendments to the Truro Town Charter 
From: Charter Review Committee Chair, Brian Boyle 
Date:   December 31, 2021 
---------------------------- 
 
Below are three recommended amendments to the Truro Town Charter, which have been 
discussed and were voted upon by members of the Charter Review Committee at our 
October 12, 2021 and amended at our December 20, 2021 meeting. 
 
The language in red notes added language, and the strikeouts note language to be 
removed.  All other charter language below is taken directly from the Town Charter, most 
recently updated at the Annual Town Election, dated May 8, 2018. 
 
Given that Chair Boyle submitted the final recommended language modifications to the 
CRC membership with gender-neutrality this is the language voted upon and approved by 
the committee and recommended to the Select Board.  This follows in all three 
recommended charter modifications. 
 
Recommendation One – section 2.3.3 
The CRC recommends that section 2.3.3 be modified in three ways:  1. to increase the 
number of signatures necessary from ten to thirty for a petition article to the Town 
Meeting Warrant;  2. to add language requiring a lead petitioner on all petitions;  and 3. 
to make section 2.3.3 gender neutral.  
 
Explanation:  The committee determined that the town of Truro does considerable work 
to review petitioned articles, publish them to the warrant, and engage in discussion and 
voting on them at Town Meeting.  In light of the effort involved it was decided that ten 
signatures was inadequate for moving a petition forward, particularly given the increased 
population of Truro voters since the establishment of the ten signature guideline.  The 
committee also discussed and agreed that a lead petitioner was necessary in order for the 
Select Board to provide sufficient guidance to petitioners as outlined in section 2.3.3.  
 

A petition on an approved form and signed by ten thirty (30) registered voters of 
the Town shall secure inclusion of an article in the warrant of the Annual Town 
Meeting. A petition on an approved form and signed by 100 registered voters of 
the Town shall secure inclusion of an article in the warrant of a Special Town 
Meeting.  Sufficient guidance shall be provided by the Board of Selectmen Select 
Board to the petitioners to ensure that the petitioned article is in the proper form 
to secure inclusion in the warrant.  All petitioned articles must identify a voting 
lead petitioner for inclusion or consideration in the warrant. If a lead 
petitioner is unable to be identified, the petition will be deferred until such 
time that a lead petitioner is contacted. 

 



 
 
Recommendation Two – section 6.2.10 
The CRC recommends that section 6.2.10 be modified in three ways:  1. to increase the 
timeline for a multi-member board to fill its own vacancies from forty-five to sixty days;  
2. to add language requiring that the appointing body confirm the appointment within 
another 60 days;  and 3. to make section 6.2.10 gender neutral.  
 
Explanation:  The committee determined that forty-five days was an inadequate amount 
of time for citizens to become aware of a vacancy on a multi-member body, apply to its 
appointing authority and be approved at a public meeting.  Additionally it was agreed that 
for the purposes of transparency, any new member, added through a vote by the multi-
member body, should have their appointment confirmed by a vote of the appointing 
body, which would necessarily be done in public.  
 

Vacancies on multi-member bodies shall be filled in accordance with General 
Law and in accordance with the provisions of this Charter by the Board of 
Selectmen Select Board or other appointing authority as may be established by 
General Law, this Charter, By-law or vote of the Town Meeting. If the vacancy is 
not filled within sixty forty-five days of the notification of the vacancy by the 
Chairman Chair of the multi-member body, the vacancy shall may be filled by 
the remaining members of the body with confirmation by the appointing 
authority within sixty days of the vote of the multi-member body. 

 
 
Recommendation Three – section 6.4.7 
The CRC recommends that section 6.4.7 be modified in two ways: 1. to distinguish 
absences as unexcused as they relate to this section; 2. to make section 6.4.7 gender 
neutral. 
 
Explanation:  The committee determined that four consecutive absences should not be 
cause for dismissal if they are due to excusable issues. 
 
The unexcused absence of a member or alternate member for four consecutive meetings 
of an appointed multi-member body shall serve to vacate the office, unless such absence 
is approved by a vote of the multi-member body. The Chairman Chair of the body shall 
forthwith notify the appointing authority that such vacancy has occurred. The vacancy 
shall be filled in accordance with section 6-2-10 of this Charter and the appointee shall 
complete the vacant unexpired term. 
 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

Agenda Item: 6E 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 

                            Select Board Agenda Item  
 
DEPARTMENT: Recreation & Beach 
 
REQUESTOR:  Damion Clements, Beach and Recreation Director  
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  March 8, 2022 
 
ITEM: Request for beach sticker fee increase 
 
EXPLANATION:  Recreation & Beach Director Clements prepared a request to increase beach 
stickers fees to align with neighboring towns.  He will be in attendance to present this request 
and to answer questions from the Board. The fee increase was recommended by the Truro 
Beach Advisory Committee 5-0 on 2/10/22. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  Beach permit fees are deposited in Receipts Reserved 
for Appropriation 

 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Perception that Truro Beaches are less desirable then other Cape 
Cod beaches. Department has increased costs and will have disproportionate revenue increase 
if fees are not increased. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to approve proposed beach sticker fee increase effective 
immediately. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Beach Department Survey 
2. Proposed fee increase 

 

 



Agenda Item:  6E1







                          Agenda Item:  6E2 

Truro Recreation & Beach 
Request for Fee Increase - 2022 

 

Proposed Fee Changes 

• Increase daily pass to $25.00/day. Increase of $5.00.                                  
• Increase Resident Beach Sticker to $25.00. Increase of $5.00. 
• Increase Non-Resident Beach Sticker: 

o $100.00 for 1 week. Increase of $25.00 
o $150.00 for 2 weeks. Increase of $25.00 
o $200.00 for 3 weeks. Increase of $25.00 
o $250.00 for 4 weeks. Increase of $25.00 
o $300.00 for season (11 weeks). Increase of $50.00 

 

 

 

Last fee increase in 2019. 

* Non-Resident beach sticker fees increased by $25.00 

* Daily beach pass increased from $15.00 to $20.00 

* Resident beach sticker fees increased from $15.00 to $20.00 

* Beach Fire permit fee increased from $0.00 to $10.00 

* Beach Non-Resident & Resident ORV increased by $5.00 

* Replacement stickers increased from $1.00 to $5.00 

 



 
 

Agenda Item: 6F 

TOWN OF TRURO 
Select Board Agenda Item  

 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:   Anne Greenbaum, Planning Board Chair 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  March 8, 2022 
 
ITEM: Referral of Zoning Bylaw Amendments 
 
EXPLANATION:   The Planner Board, in accordance with MGL c.40A, §5 – Adoption and Change of Zoning 
bylaws, submitted the attached zoning amendment articles to begin the referral process.  The Zoning Bylaw 
articles submitted by the Planning Board are: 

• Purpose—10.2 
• Street Definition—10.4 
• Lot Coverage—10.4  
• Duplex Bylaw—40.1 
• Mean Ground Level—10.4 
In addition to the articles, two General Bylaw articles were submitted and attached but are not subject to 

the 40A referral process. The Planning Board offered a brief explanation of all of their articles as well 
(attached).   

Upon receipt of these amendments, the Select Board has fourteen (14) days to refer the articles back to 
the Planning Board for public hearings. The Planning Board must then schedule a public hearing within 65-days 
of this referral. The public hearing is in the process of being scheduled and advertised.  

The Board will have an opportunity to take votes to recommend the articles at a subsequent Select Board 
meeting. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  This would not be in compliance with the required actions pursuant to MGL 
c.40A, §5. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO refer the proposed bylaw amendments to the Planning Board to begin the 
necessary public hearing process pursuant to MGL c.40A, §5. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Memo from Planning Board 
2. Articles for Referral (5) 
3. Additional Planning Board Submitted Articles (2) 

 



  Agenda Item: 6F1 

1 
 

 
From:  Anne Greenbaum – Chair Truro Planning Board 
To:  Truro Select Board 
Re:  Draft Articles for Annual Town Meeting 2022 
Date:  March 3, 2022 
 
 
The Planning Board is sending seven (7) draft articles to the Select Board for referral back to the 
Planning Board for Public Hearings.  Below is a brief description of each of the draft articles for 
the Select Board.    
 
1. Zoning Bylaw Purpose – 10.2   

The purpose section of the Zoning Bylaw lays out the broad goals of the Zoning Bylaws.  The 
proposed article adds language that reflects current challenges and conditions including the 
effects of climate change. 

 
2. Street Definition - 10.4  

This article is focused on addressing 2 concerns.  This first is to make required information 
easy to find.  The current bylaw refers to design standards from the Town of Truro 
Subdivision Regulations as they existed on January 1, 1989.  These standards are not in the 
current Subdivision Regulations or any recent version, making them very difficult to find.  
This article will include the street design elements referred to in the body of the bylaw.  The 
second is to clarify that approved subdivision streets are included in the definition of street. 

 
3. Lot Coverage  

Tree, shrubs, plants and other greenery help decrease runoff, provide natural stabilization 
on slopes, increase natural carbon sequestration and provide visual appeal.  Currently 
Truro, unlike many Cape Towns, does not address how much of a lot should be kept 
“green”.  This article would require lots in the Residential and Seashore Districts have no 
more than 30% of the lot area covered by impermeable surfaces.  All current conditions 
would be grandfathered in. 

 
4. Stormwater Management  

This is a proposed comprehensive new bylaw to address the critical issue of stormwater 
management on both public and private property.  The need for such a bylaw has been 
identified in several reports to the Town of Truro and by the Cape Cod Commission.  The 
draft  included is based on a model bylaw from Cape Cod Commission and the current bylaw 
in Eastham.    
This draft is currently being actively worked on.  A major question that still needs to be 
addressed is to identify the “Reviewing Agent” responsible for oversight.  

 
 
 



  Agenda Item: 6F1 

2 
 

5. Development Agreement 
A development agreement is a consensual, binding contract between two or more parties, 
typically between a land owner/land developer and a government agency(ies). Truro had 
adopted a bylaw authorizing Development Agreements that was inadvertently omitted 
during a bylaw rewrite.  This is a tool that could allow for creative approaches to new 
housing and other opportunities in Truro while protecting our water and environment. 
According to the Cape Cod Commission “The value of development agreements is found in 
their flexibility.  They can be useful to towns as they allow the extraction of certain public 
benefits without running afoul of prescribed rules governing regulatory "takings" and other 
regulatory restrictions.  They can be helpful to the land owner/developer as the executed 
contract provides protection against regulatory changes that may jeopardize a long term 
project.”  Towns wishing to execute development agreements must adopt this bylaw, or a 
reasonably related substitute, as a general or zoning bylaw or ordinance and have their 
Local Comprehensive Plans certified by the Cape Cod Commission.  This draft is based on a 
model bylaw from the Cape Cod Commission.   

  
6. Duplex Bylaw 

This is a revision to the existing duplex bylaw designed to increase year-round housing 
options in Truro.  The bylaw would apply to lots except those in the Beach Point and 
Seashore Districts.  This revision will:   
• Decrease the required lot size. 
• Increase the size limit on the structure to 3,600 square feet. 
• Remove a limit on the size of 2nd unit which will allow both units to house families. 
• Require 12-month lease or owner occupancy for both units. 
A major difference between these units and ADU’s is size.  The current maximum size of an 
ADU is 900 square feet.  The division of the up to 3,600 square feet between the two duplex 
units is not regulated allowing for flexibility. 

 
7. Mean Ground Level  

 This article would accomplish 3 things.  It would clarify the existing definition, limit how 
much the building pad can be above the existing ground level and decrease the amount of 
fill required in many new constructions. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



  Agenda Item: 6F2 

Planning Board Draft Warrant Article March 3, 2022 
 
PB-1      § 10.2   Purpose (current with additions) 

     The purpose of this bylaw is to: 

1. promote the health, safety, convenience and welfare of the inhabitants of Truro,  

2. prevent the overcrowding of land,  

3. conserve the value of land and buildings,  

4. enable the protection of clean and adequate water supply,  

5. conserve natural resources,  

6. prevent blight of the environment,  

7. encourage the most appropriate use of land in Truro, 

8. promote carbon sequestration by natural means, 

9.  promote the use of Green Energy and Green building practices,  

10. protect native soils from unnecessary removal or disturbance, 

11. protect and maintain the scenic rural character, ambiance and aesthetics of 

Truro, and  

12. to promote the implementation of the goals and policies of the Truro Local 

Comprehensive Plan. 

 



  Agenda Item: 6F3 

Planning Board Draft Warrant Article March 3, 2022 

PB – 2   10.4 Definitions 
 

Street. A public or private way which affords access to abutting property. For the purposes of this  
bylaw, the terms "street", "road", "way", and "road right-of-way" bear the same meaning. When 
a street(s) is to be used for lot frontage, the street(s) shall conform to the following  requirements:   

1) The minimum width of street right-of-ways shall be 40 feet. 

2) Property lines at street intersections shall be rounded to provide for a curb radius of 
not less than 20 feet. 

3) Dead-end streets shall be provided at the closed end with a turnaround having a 
property line diameter of at least 80 feet. When ways requiring turnarounds may be 
extended in future subdivisions, the Board may require only an area equal to the above 
requirement to be shown and marked "Reserved for Turning". Upon extension of the 
way through this turning area, the portions not included in the way shall revert to their 
respective lots. 

of the Town of Truro Subdivision Regulations, Section IV, Design Standards (b), (c), and (d) as 
they existed on January 1, 1989.  
Street(s) shall have a center line length in excess of 100 feet. For dead-end street(s), this distance 
shall be measured from the sideline of the layout of the road to be intersected           to the opposite end of 
the layout of the turnaround cul-de-sac.  

 
Town of Truro paved street(s) that: 

(1) have a minimum layout width of 20 feet,  
(2) were created prior to January 1, 1989, and  
(3) were accepted by Truro Town Meeting, are exempt from the width requirements 

of the Town of Truro Subdivision Regulations, Section IV, Design Standards. These accepted 
public paved ways  shall be deemed adequate as lot frontage for the issuance of building permits. 
The list of accepted Truro public paved ways is available from the Town of Truro Town Clerk 
upon request.  
 
 Streets that are: 

• constructed in accordance with subdivision rules & regulations, at the time, and 
• shown within an approved definitive subdivision plan signed by the Truro Planning 

Board, and  
• recorded at the Barnstable Registry of Deeds 

 are deemed acceptable for frontage. 
• Streets that are shown solely on an Approval Not Required Plan (ANR) endorsed by the 

Planning Board are not included in this definition. 



  Agenda Item: 6F4 1 
 

Planning Board Draft Warrant Article March 3, 2022 
 

PB -3 Lot Coverage   § 10.4 Definitions 
 

Building. (Truro. Current) 
The word building shall be any three-dimensional enclosure, portable or fixed, temporary or 
permanent, which is composed of building materials and which encloses any space for use or 
occupancy; building shall include “structure” unless the context unequivocally indicates 
otherwise; and with the exception of fences, field or garden walls, cold frames, stairways for 
beach access, and embankment retaining walls, building shall include foundations in the 
ground and any part of any kind of structure above ground. 

 
Lot. (Truro. Current) 

A parcel of land, undivided by a street, with definite boundaries, title to which is held in 
undivided ownership. 

 
Lot Area. (Truro. Current) 

The area of a lot when used for building purposes shall not be less than the minimum required 
by this bylaw for the district in which it is located. Such an area shall not be interpreted to 
include any portion of a lot below mean water level on fresh water, below mean high water on 
tidal water or within the limits of any defined way, exclusive of driveways serving only the lot 
itself. No less than 100% of the minimum lot area required shall consist of contiguous upland 
exclusive of marsh, bog, swamp, beach, dune or wet meadow. This definition shall apply only 
to lots created after April 30, 1987. 

 
Lot Coverage. (Truro. Current) 

The portion of a lot which is covered by impervious structures and improvements. Impervious 
structures and improvements shall include but not be limited to paved driveways and parking 
areas, principal and accessory structures, swimming pools and other on-site amenities which 
render any portion of the lot impervious. 
 

Impervious Covered Surface:  
Pavement, pavers or structure(s) on, above, or below the ground that do not allow precipitation 
or surface water runoff from penetrating into the soil. For the purposes of this lot coverage 
bylaw, pervious paved surfaces shall be included in the computation of covered lot area. 

 
 
New Bylaw 
Lot Coverage:  

No more than 30 percent (30%) of the total area of any lot in the Residential and Seashore 
Districts shall be rendered impervious or covered.  This includes but is not limited to the 
installation of buildings, structures, patios, decks, pools and paved surfaces (including 
permeable and impermeable pavements).    



  Agenda Item: 6F4 2 
 

SECTION 50 
Area and Height Regulations 

 
§ 50.1 Regulations 

A. Table 
 

 
 
 (4/05, 4/06, 4/10) 
 

NOTES 

1. Except buildings for accessory use and cottage. (4/10) 
2. Except lots or parcels lawfully in existence and shown on a subdivision plan or described in a deed recorded 

at the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds prior to the adoption of the bylaw by Truro Town Meeting on 
February 15, 1960, having at least five thousand (5,000) square feet of area and at least fifty (50) feet of lot 
frontage. 

3. Except in the Seashore District where the minimum setback from all streets is 50 ft. measured at a right 
angle from the street line. 

4. Except in those portions of the Beach Point Limited Business district served by the Town of Provincetown 
Water System, where the minimum sideyard and backyard setbacks shall be equivalent to five (5) ft per 
story of the building or structure in question. Structures less than a full story shall meet the minimum 5 ft 
setback. 

5. The 2 story limitation shall be measured from above mean ground level. 
5a. Except buildings which do not have a ridge or hip the maximum building height shall not exceed 

twenty-three (23) ft as measured to the highest point of the structure. (4/12) 
6. Free standing flagpoles and private noncommercial radio and television antennae shall not exceed fifty (50) 

ft above mean ground level. 
 (#7 deleted 4/12) 

8. Except in the Seashore District where the minimum lot size is 3 acres. (4/05) 
9. For any lot created after April 30, 2004, the portion of the lot connecting the frontage with the front line of 

any building site shall not be less than 50 feet wide, as measured between opposite sidelines.
 (4/06) 

10. Residential & Seashore Districts 
 

 

DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENT ALL DISTRICTS 
Minimum lot size 33,750 sq. ft. (1)(2)(8) 
Minimum lot frontage 150 ft (1)(2) 
Minimum frontyard setback 25 ft (3) 
Minimum sideyard setback 25 ft (3)(4) 
Maximum building height 2 stories; 30 feet (5)(5a)(6) 
Minimum backyard setback 25 ft (3)(4) 
Lot Shape (9) 
Maximum Lot coverage 30% (10) 



  Agenda Item: 6F5 

Planning Board Draft Warrant Article March 3, 2022 

PB 6 Duplex Bylaw 

§ 40.1 Duplex Houses and Apartments 
A. Purpose. For the purpose of promoting the more efficient use of land, in keeping with the 

protection of the quality of life and ecology, and at the same time giving relief to those 
with problems of obtaining adequate housing, the Board of Appeals may approve a special 
permit authorizing the new construction of duplex houses or the conversion of single 
family dwellings to apartments, consistent with the following conditions. 
 

B. These structure, either new or conversion, are allowed in all districts except:  Beach Point 
and the Seashore District. 
 

C. New Construction. lots of one acre meeting minimum lot size of 33,750 sq ft. or more are 
required for new construction; the duplex shall not exceed 3,600 sq. ft.; the requirements 
of paragraph D shall be met. 
 

D. Conversion. Conversion of single family dwellings in any zoning district except Beach 
Point and the Seashore District may be approved by special permit from the Board of 
Appeals. Lots shall meet current minimum lot area requirements; no more than one 
apartment in addition to the primary dwelling unit may be created from any one single 
family dwelling; the floor area of the secondary dwelling unit shall not exceed 50% of 
that of the primary dwelling unit; the floor area of the secondary dwelling unit shall not 
exceed 600 sq. ft. 
 

E. Requirements. All new construction or conversions shall comply with the following. 
1. All applicable provisions of the building, health and safety codes, as determined by 

the Building Commissioner and Board of Health shall be met. 
2. One unit shall have a 12 month lease. 
3. One unit shall be owner occupied OR have a 12 month lease 
4. The applicant shall demonstrate that the new construction or conversion is essential 

to provide needed housing. 
5. The new construction or conversion is compatible with and will not derogate from or 

be detrimental to the neighborhood. 
6. Section 50, Area and Height regulations of this bylaw. 
7. The use is in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the bylaw. 

 



  Agenda Item: 6F6 

Planning Board Draft Warrant Article March 3, 2022 
 

PB 7  Mean Ground Level 
 
§10.4 Definitions 
 
Mean Ground Level: Where the finished ground level varies in elevation on different sides of a 
building footprint, the average of the various elevations at the centers of the four main sides. In 
the case where fill has been used to raise the finished ground level on a side(s) of the building to 
an elevation higher than the preconstruction ground level, on those sides the measurement shall 
be taken from center of that side ten (10) feet out from the side of the building. Further, the 
finished grade of the fill, within one hundred (100) feet of the building shall not have a 
grade steeper than ten per cent (10%) (one foot of drop for every ten- foot run). 

 
Proposed New Regulation, Section 50, Area and Height Regulations 

§50.1.I Building Pad Height and Sloped Site Limitations 

1. The finished grade elevation as measured at the center of the highest of the four main 
sides of the building shall not be more than 18 inches above the existing grade 
elevation at that same point. 

 
2. Fill sections on the downhill sides of the building shall be minimized insofar as 

possible with respect to both the lateral extents and the amount of fill. The grade of 
the ground surface in filled areas downhill of the building shall not exceed the 
following maximum grades: 

 
a. Within 10 feet of the building: 10% grade (1V:10H). 

 
b. Beyond 10 feet from the building (Sloped sites): 40% grade (1V:2.5H). This 

limitation applies to slopes to be stabilized by vegetation. Slopes steeper than 
40% grade are permissible only in those instances where selected engineered fill 
materials, armored slopes, reinforced earth or retaining structures are provided 
to allow for steeper conditions. In all instances where this slope exceeds a 40% 
grade, the details, type and height of the stabilized slope section (and/or retention 
structures) shall be described on the site plan or on the building permit 
application. 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 1 
Planning Board Draft Warrant Article March 3, 2022 

 
PB - 4 Stormwater Management 
 

Town of Truro 
Draft Stormwater Management Regulations 2022 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
SECTION 1 – GENERAL          1 

1.01 Purpose and Objectives         1 
1.02 Authority           2 
1.03 Definitions          2 

SECTION 2 – ILLICIT DISCHARGE DETECTION AND ELIMINATION     8 
2.01 Applicability           8 
2.02 Responsibility for Administration       8 
2.03 Prohibitive Activities          8 
2.04 Exemptions           9 
2.05 Enforcement           9 
2.06 Severability           11 

SECTION 3 – CONSTRUCTION EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL, AND POST- 
 CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER MANAGEMENT     11 

3.01 Preamble           11 
3.02 Purpose and Objectives         11 
3.03 Applicability and Exemptions        12 
3.04 Soil Erosion and Sediment Control       13 
3.05 Post-Construction Stormwater Management      14 
3.06 Enforcement           15 
3.07 Severability           17 

 
SECTION 1 – GENERAL  
 
1.01 Purpose and Objectives 
 

1. To protect and enhance the public health, safety, environment, and general welfare of the 
citizens of the Town of Truro through the regulation and elimination of Illicit Discharges to 
the Truro Stormwater System, into the Town’s groundwater aquifers or into the Waters of the 
Commonwealth, as herein defined. 
 
2. To control the detrimental effects of Erosion and Sedimentation deriving from construction 
site Stormwater Runoff, and require the development of Post-Construction Stormwater 
Management plans to ensure proper functioning and maintenance of Stormwater 
infrastructure. 
 
3. To ensure the Town of Truro’s compliance with the Environmental Protection Agency’s 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Municipal Separate Storm Sewer 
System (MS4) General Permits of 2003 and 2016, as well as all other applicable Federal and 
State Laws. 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 2 
 
4. To develop comprehensive stormwater management regulations that are congruent with 
existing Town of Truro Bylaws and Regulations, to establish the Massachusetts Stormwater 
Standards and the MassDEP Stormwater Handbook as the governing regulatory standard for 
project design, review, construction and facility operation, to encourage groundwater 
recharge and the use of stormwater best management practices for the protection of our 
aquifer. 
 
5. Reasonable guidance for the regulation of design construction and post development 
stormwater runoff for the purpose of protecting local water resources from degradation. 

 
1.02 Authority 
 

These Regulations are adopted by the Town of Truro pursuant to Massachusetts General 
Laws c. 83, §10, and the regulations of the Federal Clean Water Act found at 40 CFR 122.34. 
Nothing in these regulations is intended to replace the requirements of the Town of Truro 
Wetlands Protection Bylaw, Zoning Bylaw, Subdivision Rules and Regulations, Board Of 
Health Regulations, or of any other bylaw that may be adopted by the Town of Truro, or any 
state or federal requirement, law, regulation or policy. Any activity subject to the provisions 
of these regulations must comply with all other applicable Town, State or Federal 
requirements. 

 
1.03 Definitions 
 

ABUTTING PROPERTY — Land sharing one or more common boundaries with the project 
area. 
 
ADVERSE IMPACT — An activity that has a deleterious effect on waters or wetlands, including 
their quality, quantity, surface area, species composition, aesthetics or usefulness for human 
or natural uses which are or may potentially be harmful or injurious to human health, 
welfare, safety or property, to biological productivity, diversity, or stability or which 
unreasonably interfere with the enjoyment of life or property, including outdoor recreation. 
 
AGRICULTURAL ACTIVITIES – The normal maintenance or improvement of land in 
agricultural or aquaculture use, as defined by the Massachusetts Wetlands Protection Act, 
M.G.L. c. 131, § 40, and its implementing regulations. 
 
ALTERATION — Any activity, which will change the ability of a ground surface area to absorb 
water or will change existing surface drainage patterns. Any activity on an area of land that 
changes the water quality, force, direction, timing or location of runoff flowing from the area. 
Such changes include: change from distributed runoff to confined, discrete discharge; change 
in the volume of runoff from the area; change in the peak rate of runoff from the area; and 
change in the recharge to groundwater on the area. Examples of alterations include, but are 
not limited to, earthmoving, paving, and modification of existing vegetation. 

 
APPLICANT – Any person, individual, partnership, association, firm, company, corporation, 
trust, authority, agency, department, or political subdivision of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts or the federal government, to the extent permitted by law, applying for a 
permit with the Town of Truro. 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 3 
 
BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICE (BMP) – An activity, procedure, restraint, or structural 
improvement that helps to reduce the quantity or improve the quality of stormwater runoff. 
 
BUILDING COMMISSIONER — The Town of Truro Building Commissioner or his/her 
designee. 
 
CERTIFIED PROFESIONAL IN EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL – A certified specialist in 
soil erosion and sediment control. This certification program, sponsored by the Soil and 
Water Conservation Society in cooperation with the American Society of Agronomy, provides 
the public with evidence of professional qualifications. 
 
CLEAN WATER ACT – The Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. §1251 et seq.) as 
amended. CLEARING – Any activity that removes the vegetative surface cover. 
 
CONSTRUCTION AND WASTE MATERIALS – Excess or discarded building or site materials, 
including but not limited to concrete truck washout, chemicals, litter and sanitary waste at a 
construction site that may adversely impact water quality. 
 
CONSTRUCTION SITE — Any site where activity is proposed or occurs that involves the 
alteration of more than 5,000 square feet of land area. 
 
DEVELOPMENT – The modification of land to accommodate a new use or expansion of use, 
usually involving construction. 
 
DIRECT DISCHARGE – Any pipe, open channel, or concentrated flow path where stormwater 
runoff is conveyed directly into the ground or into to a water body without prior stormwater 
treatment or volume reduction. 
 
DISCHARGE OF POLLUTANTS – The addition from any source of any pollutant or combination 
of pollutants into the municipal storm drain system or into the ground or waters of the United 
States or Commonwealth from any source. 
 
DISTURBANCE – Any activity that causes a temporary or permanent change in the position or 
location of soil, vegetation, impervious cover, or other land surface that exposes soils to 
potential erosion, changes the ability of a ground surface area to absorb water, increases 
polluted runoff, and/or changes the existing surface drainage patterns. 
 
DPW – Truro Department of Public Works. 
 
ENFORCEMENT ORDER – A written order issued by the Select Board or the Reviewing Agent 
in order to enforce the provisions of these regulations. 
 
EROSION – The wearing away of the land surface by natural or artificial forces such as wind, 
water, ice, gravity, or vehicle traffic and the subsequent detachment and transportation of soil 
particles. 

 
EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL PLAN – A document containing narrative, 
drawings and details developed by a qualified professional engineer (PE) or a Certified 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 4 
Professional in Erosion and Sedimentation Control (CPESC), which includes BMPs, or 
equivalent measures designed to control surface runoff, erosion and sedimentation during 
pre‐construction and construction related land disturbance activities. 
 
GRADING – Changing the level or shape of the ground surface.  
 
GROUNDWATER – Water beneath the surface of the ground. 
 
GRUBBING – The act of clearing land surface by digging up roots and stumps. 
 
ILLICIT CONNECTION – A surface or subsurface drain or conveyance, which allows an illicit 
discharge into the municipal storm drain system, including without limitation sewage, 
process wastewater, or wash water and any connections from indoor drains, sinks, or toilets, 
regardless of whether said connection was previously allowed, permitted, or approved before 
the effective date of this these regulations. 
 
ILLICIT DISCHARGE – Direct or indirect discharge to the municipal storm drain system that is 
not composed entirely of stormwater, except as exempted in Section 2.04. The term does not 
include a discharge in compliance with an NPDES Storm Water Discharge Permit or a Surface 
Water Discharge Permit, or resulting from firefighting activities exempted pursuant to Section 
2.04 of these regulations. 
 
IMPERVIOUS SURFACE – Any material or structure that either prevents or slows the entry of 
water into the underlying soil or causes water to runoff in greater quantities or at an 
increased rate of flow. Common impervious surfaces include, but are not limited to, rooftops, 
walkways, patios, driveways, parking lots, storage areas, concrete or asphalt paving, unit 
pavers and gravel or dense-graded crushed stone areas.  
 
IMPERVIOUS COVER – Any material or structure on or above the ground that prevents water 
from infiltrating through the underlying soil. Impervious cover includes, without limitation, 
paved parking lots, roads, sidewalks, driveways, patios, rooftops, and swimming pools. Gravel 
and dirt surfaced roads and parking areas that have become compacted by vehicles and heavy 
equipment are considered impervious. Permeable pavers and porous pavements designed to 
prevent compaction are not considered impervious for the purposes of this bylaw. The term 
“impervious cover” shall include “impervious area” and “impervious surface.”    
 
INFILTRATION – The act of conveying precipitation or runoff into the ground to permit 
groundwater recharge and the reduction of surface runoff from a project site. 
 
LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT (LID) – An approach to land development design and 
stormwater management that attempts to mimic the natural hydrology of the site by 
avoiding, reducing and mitigating impacts with natural, non-structural and structural 
measures. 
 
MASSDEP – Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection. 
 
MASSDEP STORMWATER HANDBOOK – MassDEP’s published guidelines to assist with 
compliance with the Massachusetts Stormwater Management Standards 

 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 5 
MASSACHUSETTS STORMWATER MANAGEMENT STANDARDS – The Standards as further 
defined by the Massachusetts Stormwater Handbook, issued by the Department of 
Environmental Protection, and as amended, coordinating the requirements prescribed by 
state regulations promulgated under the authority of the Massachusetts Wetlands Protection 
Act G.L. c. 131 §. 40 and Massachusetts Clean Waters Act G.L. c. 21, §. 23‐56. The 
Standards address stormwater impacts through implementation of performance standards to 
reduce or prevent pollutants from reaching both the Town’s groundwater aquifers and water 
bodies and to control the quantity of runoff from a site. 
 
DRAIN SYSTEM – The system of conveyances designed or used for collecting or conveying 
stormwater, including, without limitation, any road with a drainage system, street, gutter, 
curb, inlet, piped storm drain, pumping facility, retention or detention basin, natural or man-
made or altered drainage channel, and other drainage structure that together comprise the 
storm drainage system situated within the Town of Truro. 
 
NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) STORMWATER 
DISCHARGE PERMIT – A permit issued by United States Environmental Protection Agency or 
jointly with the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection that authorizes the 
discharge of pollutants to waters of the United States. 
 
NON-STORMWATER DISCHARGE – Discharge to a drainage system not composed entirely of 
stormwater. 
 
NEW DEVELOPMENT – Any construction or land disturbance on a lot, or portion of a lot, or 
linear right-of-way or easement that is currently in a vegetated state. 
 
OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE (O&M) PLAN – A plan setting up the functional, financial 
and organizational mechanisms for the ongoing operation and maintenance of a stormwater 
management system to insure that it continues to function as designed. 
 
OUTFALL – The point at which stormwater flows out from a point source discernible, 
confined and discrete conveyance into waters of the Commonwealth. 
 
OWNER – A person with a legal or equitable interest in property. 
 
PERSON – An individual, partnership, association, firm, company, trust, corporation, agency, 
authority, department or political subdivision of the Commonwealth or the federal 
government, to the extent permitted by law, and any officer, employee, or agent of such 
person. 
 
POINT SOURCE – Any discernible, confined, and discrete conveyance, including but not 
limited to, any pipe, ditch, channel, tunnel, conduit, well, discrete fissure, or container from 
which pollutants are or may be discharged. 
 
POLLUTANT – Any element or property of sewage, agricultural, industrial or commercial 
waste, runoff, leachate, heated effluent, or other matter whether originating at a point or 
nonpoint source, that is or may be introduced into any storm sewage treatment works or 
waters of the Commonwealth. Pollutants shall include without limitation: paints, varnishes, 
and solvents; oil and other automotive fluids; non-hazardous liquid and solid wastes and yard 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 6 
wastes; refuse, rubbish, garbage, litter, or other discarded or abandoned objects, ordnances, 
accumulations and floatables; pesticides, herbicides, and fertilizers; hazardous materials and 
wastes; sewage, fecal coliform and pathogens; dissolved and particulate metals; animal 
wastes; rock, sand, salt, soils; construction wastes and residues; and noxious or offensive 
matter of any kind. 
 
POST-CONSTRUCTION or POST-DEVELOPMENT – The conditions expected to exist after 
completion of the proposed development activity in accordance with approved plans on a 
specific site or tract of land, and does not refer to or include the construction phase of a 
project. 
 
PRE-CONSTRUCTION – All activity in preparation for construction. 
 
PRE-DEVELOPMENT – The conditions that exist prior to the proposed development. Where 
phased development or plan approval occurs (e.g., preliminary grading, roads, and utilities, 
etc.), the existing conditions at the time prior to the first plan submission shall establish pre-
development conditions. 
 
PROCESS WASTEWATER – Water which, during manufacturing or processing, comes into 
direct contact with or results from the production or use of any material, intermediate 
product, finished product, or waste product. 
 
PROJECT AREA – The portion of a parcel of land being developed or redeveloped. 
 
PROVINCETOWN-TRURO INTERMUNICIPAL WATER AGREEMENT- As required by an Act of 
the Massachusetts State Legislature contractually requiring the Town of Truro’s protection of 
the Pamet Lens as the Sole Source of Provincetown’s Public Water Supply serving 
Provincetown and parts of Truro. 
 
RECHARGE – The process by which groundwater is replenished by precipitation through the 
percolation of runoff and surface water through the soil. 
 
REDEVELOPMENT – Any construction, alteration, improvement, repaving, or resurfacing on a 
site that contains impervious cover, provided the activity does not increase net impervious 
cover. Portions of a project that increase impervious cover will be treated as new 
development. 
 
REVIEWING AGENT – Any Town Employee, board, commission, or agent delegated in writing 
by the Select Board to administer, implement, and enforce the Stormwater Management 
Regulations. 
 
ROAD IMPROVEMENTS – For the purposes of these regulations, work on existing roads that 
trigger stormwater management compliance include resurfacing projects when the sub-base 
is intersected, the road is being widened, or when the project includes direct drainage to a 
beach, pond, tributary or wetland, except as exempted in Section 3.04. 
 
RUNOFF – Rainfall, snowmelt, or irrigation water flowing over the ground surface. 
 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 7 
SEDIMENT – Mineral or organic soil material that is transported by wind or water, from its 
origin to another location; the product of erosion processes. 
 
SEDIMENTATION – The process or act of deposition of sediment. 
 
SITE - Any lot or parcel of land where land-disturbing activities are, were, or will be 
performed. A parcel of land being developed or redeveloped. 

 
SLOPE – The incline of a ground surface, typically expressed as a ratio of horizontal distance 
to vertical distance, or alternatively expressed as either an angle relative to horizontal or a 
percentage. 
 
SOIL – Any earth, sand, rock, gravel, loam, or similar material. 
 
STABILIZATION – The use, singly or in combination, of mechanical, structural, or vegetative 
methods, to prevent or retard erosion. 
 
STORMWATER – Stormwater runoff, snowmelt runoff, and surface water runoff and drainage. 
 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT – Using engineered structures and non‐structural (e.g., site 
design, vegetation) measures to reduce runoff volume and rates, remove pollutants, promote 
infiltration, or minimize sources of pollution. 
 
STRIP – Any activity, which removes the vegetative ground surface, cover, including tree 
removal, clearing, grubbing, and storage or removal of topsoil or other surficial organic 
material. 
 
SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PERMIT – A permit issued by the Massachusetts Department 
of Environmental Protection (MassDEP) pursuant to 314 CMR 3.00 that authorizes the 
discharge of pollutants to waters of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 
 
TOXIC OR HAZARDOUS MATERIAL or WASTE – Any material, which because of its quantity, 
concentration, chemical, corrosive, flammable, reactive, toxic, infectious or radioactive 
characteristics, either separately or in combination with any substance or substances, 
constitutes a present or potential threat to human health, safety, welfare, or to the 
environment. Toxic or hazardous materials include any synthetic organic chemical, petroleum 
product, heavy metal, radioactive, biological, or infectious waste, acid and alkali, and any 
substance defined as Toxic or Hazardous under G.L. Ch.21C and Ch.21E, and the regulations at 
310 CMR 30.000 and 310 CMR 40.0000. TSS: Total Suspended Solids. 
 
WASTEWATER – Any sanitary waste, sludge, or septic tank or cesspool overflow, and water 
that during manufacturing, cleaning or processing, comes into direct contact with or results 
from the production or use of any raw material, intermediate product, finished product, 
byproduct or waste product. 
 
WATERCOURSE – A natural or man-man channel through which water flows or a stream of 
water, including a river, brook, or underground stream. 
 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 8 
WATERS OF THE COMMONWEALTH – All waters within the jurisdiction of the 
Commonwealth, including, without limitation, rivers, streams, lakes, ponds, springs, 
impoundments, estuaries, wetlands, coastal waters, and groundwater. 
 
WETLAND RESOURCE AREAS – Areas specified in the Massachusetts Wetlands Protection 
Regulations, 310 CMR 10.00, as amended, and in the Town of Truro Wetland Bylaw and 
Regulations, as amended. 
 
Terms not defined shall be construed according to their customary and usual meaning, unless 
the context indicates a special or technical meaning. Words used in the present tense include 
the future; words in the singular number include the plural and words in the plural number 
include the singular; and the word "shall" is mandatory and not a suggestion. Additional 
definitions may be adopted by separate regulation. 

 
 
SECTION 2 – ILLICIT DISCHARGE DETECTION AND ELIMINATION 
 

2.01 Applicability 
 

These regulations shall apply to any and all illicit discharges entering the municipally 
owned storm drainage system. 

 
2.02 Responsibility for Administration 
 

1. The Truro Select Board or its designated Reviewing Agent shall administer, 
implement and enforce these regulations.  
 

2.03 Prohibitive Activities 
 

1. Illicit Discharges. No person shall dump, discharge, cause or allow to be discharged 
any pollutant or non-stormwater discharge into the municipal separate storm drain 
system (MS4), into a watercourse, or into the waters of the Commonwealth, or into 
abutting property. 
 
2. Illicit Connections. No person shall construct, use, allow, maintain or continue any 
illicit connection to the municipal storm drain system, regardless of whether the 
connection was permissible under applicable law, regulation or custom at the time of 
connection. 
 
3. Obstruction of Municipal Storm Drain System. No person shall obstruct or interfere 
with the normal flow of stormwater into or out of the municipal storm drain system 
without prior written approval from the Reviewing Agent. 
 
4. Pumping of Water. No person shall direct, discharge, lead, or pump water, clear or 
otherwise, including groundwater and/or rooftop runoff, onto any public ways or 
streets, adjacent property, into the Town's municipal separate storm drain system, or 
into any watercourse or waters of the Commonwealth. Any pumping of groundwater 
shall be done in such a way that the water is contained in its entirety on the originating 
property and shall not create a public nuisance to the Town or abutting properties. 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 9 
 
5. Discharging of Pool Water. No person shall pump pool water, de-chlorinated or 
otherwise, onto any public ways or streets, adjacent property, into the Town's 
municipal separate storm drain system, or into any watercourse or waters of the 
Commonwealth. Any pumping of pool water shall be done in such a way that the water 
is contained in its entirety on the originating property and shall not create a public 
nuisance to the Town or abutting properties. 

 
2.04 Exemptions 
 

The following non-stormwater discharges or flows are exempt from these regulations 
provided that the source is not a significant contributor of a pollutant to the Town’s 
groundwater aquifers or into the Waters of the Commonwealth: 
 

1. Discharge or flow resulting from firefighting activities; 
 
2. Waterline flushing; 
 
3. Flow from potable water sources; 
 
4. Springs; 
 
5. Natural flow from riparian habitats and wetlands; 
 
6. Diverted stream flow; 
 
7. Uncontaminated groundwater infiltration directly into the drainage system 
and/or MS4 as defined in 40 CFR 35.2005(20); 
 
8. Incidental discharges from landscape irrigation or lawn watering; 
 
9. Water from individual residential car washing; 
 
10. Discharge from street sweeping of minor amounts of water during 
operations; 
 
11. Dye testing activity in relation with a municipal operation. For private 
operations, if verbal notification is given to the Board prior to the time of the 
test; 
 
12. Non-stormwater discharge permitted under an NPDES permit or a Surface 
Water Discharge Permit, waiver, or waste discharge order administered under 
the authority of the United States Environmental Protection Agency or the 
Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection, provided that the 
discharge is in full compliance with the requirements of the permit, waiver, or 
order and applicable laws and regulations; and 
 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 10 
13. Discharges for which advanced written approval is received from the Select 
Board or the Reviewing Agent as necessary to protect public health, safety, 
welfare or the environment. 

 
2.05 Enforcement 
 

1. The Select Board or the Reviewing Agent shall enforce these regulations, orders, 
violation notices, and enforcement orders, and may pursue all civil and non-criminal 
remedies for such violations. 
 
2. Civil Relief. If a person violates the provisions of these regulations, permit, notice, or 
order issued thereunder, the Select Board or the Reviewing Agent may seek injunctive 
relief in a court of competent jurisdiction restraining the person from activities which 
would create further violations or compelling the person to perform abatement or 
remediation of the violation. 
 
3. Orders. The Select Board or the Reviewing Agent may issue a written order to 
enforce the provisions of these regulations, which may include: 
 

(1) Elimination of illicit connections or discharges to the MS4; 
 
(2) Performance of monitoring, analyses, and reporting; 
 
(3) That unlawful discharges, practices, or operations shall cease and desist; 
and 
 
(4) Remediation of contamination in connection therewith. 
 

4. If the enforcing person determines that abatement or remediation of contamination 
is required, the order shall set forth a deadline by which such abatement or 
remediation must be completed. Said order shall further advise that, should the 
violator or property owner fail to abate or perform remediation within the specified 
deadline, the Town of Truro may, at its option, undertake such work, and expenses 
thereof shall be charged to the violator. 
 
5. Within thirty (30) days after completing all measures necessary to abate the 
violation or to perform remediation, the violator and the property owner will be 
notified of the costs incurred by the Town of Truro including administrative costs. The 
violator or property owner may file a written protest objecting to the amount or basis 
of costs with the Select Board or the Reviewing Agent within thirty (30) days of receipt 
of the notification of the costs incurred. If the amount due is not received by the 
expiration of the time in which to file a protest or within thirty (30) days following a 
decision of the Select Board or the Reviewing Agent affirming or reducing the costs, or 
from a final decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, the costs shall become a 
special assessment against the property owner and shall constitute a lien on the 
owner's property for the amount of said costs. Interest shall begin to accrue on any 
unpaid costs at the statutory rate provided in MGL c. 59, § 57, after the 31st day at 
which the costs first become due. 
 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 11 
6. Civil Penalty. Any violation of any provision of these regulations, order or permit 
issued thereunder shall be punishable by a civil penalty of not more than $100 per 
violation. Each day or part thereof that such violation occurs or continues shall 
constitute a separate offense. 
 
7. Non-Criminal Disposition. As an alternative to civil action, the Town of Truro may 
elect to utilize the non-criminal disposition procedure set forth in MGL c. 40, § 21D, 
and Chapter I, Article I, of the Town of Truro Bylaws. The fine for the first violation 
shall be $100. The fine for the second violation shall be $200. The fine for the third and 
all subsequent violations shall be $300. Each day or part thereof that such violation(s) 
occurs or continues shall constitute a separate offense. The Town of Truro may also 
impose additional penalties for reimbursement of labor and/or materials used to 
temporarily remedy the violation. 
 
8. Entry to Perform Duties Under these regulations. To the extent permitted by state 
law, or if authorized by the owner or other party in control of the property, the Select 
Board or the Reviewing Agent, Truro’s municipal agents, officers, and employees may 
enter upon privately owned property for the purpose of performing their duties under 
these regulations and may make or cause to be made such examinations, surveys or 
sampling as the Select Board or the Reviewing Agent deems reasonably necessary. 
 
9. Appeals. The decisions or orders of the Select Board or the Reviewing Agent shall be 
final. Further relief shall be to a court of competent jurisdiction. 
 
10. Remedies Not Exclusive. The remedies listed in these regulations are not exclusive 
of any other remedies available under any applicable federal, state or local law. 
 

2.06 Severability 
 
The provisions of these regulations are hereby declared to be severable. If any 
provision, paragraph, sentence, or clause, of these regulations or the application 
thereof to any person, establishment, or circumstances shall be held invalid, such 
invalidity shall not affect the other provisions or application of these regulations. 

 
SECTION 3 – CONSTRUCTION EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL, AND POST-CONSTRUCTION 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
 

3.01 Preamble 
 

Construction site stormwater runoff and post-construction stormwater discharges can 
adversely affect public safety, public and private property, surface water, groundwater 
resources, drinking water supplies, recreation, aquatic habitats, fish and other aquatic 
life, property values and other uses of land and water. It is in the public interest to 
regulate construction site stormwater runoff and post-construction stormwater 
discharges in order to minimize the impacts identified above. 

 
3.02 Purpose and Objectives 
 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 12 
The purpose of these regulations is to establish minimum requirements and controls 
to protect and safeguard the environment, natural resources, general health, safety, 
and welfare of the public residing in the Town of Truro from the adverse impacts of 
soil erosion, sedimentation, and stormwater runoff. This section seeks to meet that 
purpose through the following objectives: 
 

1. Eliminating or reducing the adverse effects of soil erosion and sedimentation; 
 
2. Minimizing stormwater runoff from any development; 
 
3. Minimizing nonpoint source pollution caused by stormwater runoff from 
development; 
 
4. Providing for groundwater recharge where appropriate; 
 
5. Promote environmentally sensitive design practices; 
 
6. Ensuring controls are in place to respond to the aforementioned objectives 
and that these controls are properly operated and maintained; 
 
7. Establishing provisions for the long-term responsibility for and maintenance 
of structural stormwater control facilities and nonstructural stormwater 
management practices to ensure that they continue to function as designed, are 
maintained, and pose no threat to public safety; 
 
8. Encouraging the use of nonstructural stormwater management practices or 
"low-impact development" practices, i.e. grass swales, rain gardens and other 
BMPs;  
 
9. Establishing administrative procedures, fees and fines for violations, for the 
submission, review, approval or disapproval of applications for stormwater 
management permits, and for the inspection of approved active projects, and 
long-term follow up; 
 
10. Ensuring development adheres to MassDEP’s Stormwater Handbook and 
Stormwater Standards; 
 
11. Meet federal requirements under phase 11 of the National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System; and 
 
12. Meet the requirements of the Provincetown–Truro Inter-municipal Water 
Agreement. (2010) 

 
3.03 Applicability and Exemptions 
 

These regulations shall apply to all activities that result in: 
 

1. A land disturbance activity of 10,000 square feet of land, or that will disturb 
less than 10,000 square feet of land but are part of a larger common plan of 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 13 
development or sale that will ultimately disturb equal to or greater than 10,000 
square feet of land. 
 
2. Any land disturbance activity that results in the alteration of an area equal to 
or greater than 1,500 square feet of land where the existing grade is greater 
than 20% (1V:5H). 
 
3. No person shall perform any activity that results in a land disturbance 
activity of 10,000 square feet or more of land without an approved soil erosion 
and sediment control plan and stormwater management plan. 
 
4. Any new development or redevelopment that will result in a net increase in 
impervious surface area equal to or greater than 1,500 square feet. 
 
5. The following exemptions from these regulations apply: 
 

(1) Any land disturbance of less than 10,000 square feet of land; 
 
(2) Any new development or redevelopment that will result in a net 
increase in impervious surface area of less than 1,500 square feet; 
 
(3) Normal maintenance and improvement of land in agricultural use as 
defined by the Wetlands Protection Act regulation, 310 CMR 10.04; 
 
(4) In addition, as authorized in the Phase II Small MS4 General Permit 
for Massachusetts, stormwater discharges resulting from the above 
activities that are subject to jurisdiction under the Wetland Protection 
Act and demonstrate compliance with the Massachusetts Stormwater 
Management Standards as reflected in an order of conditions issued by 
the Town of Truro Conservation Commission are deemed to be in 
compliance with these regulations; 
 
(5) Emergency activities necessary to protect public health or safety, so 
long as all necessary emergency permits or emergency certifications 
have been or will be obtained, including emergency repairs to roads or 
their drainage systems as per the Massachusetts Stormwater Handbook 
and Stormwater Standards; 
 
(6) Normal maintenance and improvements of Town of Truro publicly 
owned roads, including but not limited to asphalt resurfacing, road 
reclamation, re-grading of existing gravel roads and any other minor 
activities as described by 310 CMR 10.02 (2)(b) 2; 
 
(7) Any work or projects for which all necessary approvals and permits 
have been issued before the effective date of these regulations. 

 
3.04 Soil Erosion and Sediment Control 
 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 14 
1. An erosion and sedimentation control plan review is triggered by a site development 
plan and/or a building permit application or other activity that falls within the 
jurisdiction of these regulations. 
 
2. Applicants shall be referred by the permit-issuing agency (Planning Board, Zoning 
Board of Appeals, Building Department, etc.) to the Department of Public Works to 
conduct the soil erosion and sediment control plan review. 
 
3. Activities that fall within the jurisdiction of this bylaw that do not require a permit 
from any Town department are not exempt from this provision. In this situation, the 
applicant must seek a soil erosion and sediment control plan review directly from the 
Department of Public Works. 
 
4. The Director of Public Works may take any of the following actions as a result of 
his/her review: approval, approval with conditions, disapproval, or disapproval 
without prejudice. 
 
5. The Building Commissioner shall administer, implement and enforce these 
regulations. Any powers granted to or duties imposed upon the Building 
Commissioner may be delegated by the Building Commissioner to his/ her designee, 
including but not limited to the DPW Director. 
 
6. The Erosion and Sediment Control Plan shall contain sufficient information to 
describe the nature and purpose of the proposed development, pertinent conditions of 
the site and the adjacent areas, and proposed erosion and sedimentation controls 
which include BMPs appropriate to site conditions, including efforts to minimize the 
areas of land disturbance. The plan shall also describe measures to control 
construction wastes including but not limited to construction materials, concrete truck 
wash out chemicals, litter, and sanitary waste. 
 
7. Construction activities and site alterations shall avoid unnecessary disturbances of 
areas susceptible to erosion and sediment loss. This means avoiding to the greatest 
extent practicable: the clearing or damaging of large forest stands; the clearing or 
grubbing beyond what is required for site access, construction and construction 
staging areas; building on steep slopes 20% (1V:5H) or greater; and disturbing land in 
wetland buffer zones and floodplains. 

 
3.05 Post-Construction Stormwater Management 
 

1. A stormwater management plan review is triggered by a site development plan 
and/or a building permit application or other activity that falls within the jurisdiction 
of these regulations. 
 
2. Applicants shall be referred by the permit-issuing agency (Planning Board, Zoning 
Board of Appeals, Building Department, etc.) to the Department of Public Works to 
conduct the stormwater management plan review 
 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 15 
3. Activities that fall within the jurisdiction of this bylaw that do not require a permit 
from any Town department are not exempt from this provision. In this situation, the 
applicant must seek stormwater management plan review directly from the Director. 
 
4. An operation and maintenance plan (O&M Plan) is required at the time of 
application for all projects within the jurisdiction of these stormwater regulations. The 
maintenance plan shall be designed to ensure compliance with the permit in all 
seasons and throughout the life of the system. 
 
5. The Director of Public Works shall make the final decision of what maintenance 
option is appropriate in a given situation. The Director will consider natural features, 
proximity of site to water bodies and wetlands, extent of impervious surfaces, size of 
the site, the types of stormwater management structures, and potential need for 
ongoing maintenance activities when making this decision. 
 
6. The O&M Plan shall identify and include all required documents, including, but not 
limited to, maintenance agreements and stormwater management easements. All 
documents may be submitted to Town Counsel for review. 
 
7. As-Built. Permittees shall submit as-built plans prepared and certified by a 
Massachusetts Professional Land Surveyor no later than one year after completion of 
construction projects to be included with the Stormwater Management Plan. The As-
Built plans must depict all on site structural and non-structural controls design to 
manage stormwater associated with the completed site. The plan set must include 
design specifications of all stormwater management controls prepared and certified by 
a Massachusetts Professional Engineer. 
 
8. The operation and maintenance plan shall remain on file with the Department of 
Public Works and shall be an ongoing requirement. 
 
9. Stormwater Management Systems disturbing a minimum 10,000 square feet of land 
or projects that are part of a common plan of development that disturb a minimum 
10,000 square feet of land must adhere to the following performance standards: 

 
(1) All Stormwater Management Systems must be designed in compliance with 
the latest version of the Massachusetts Stormwater Handbook. 
 
(2) All Stormwater Management Systems must be designed to achieve the 
following reduction in Total Phosphorous and Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 
from post- construction stormwater runoff from new and redevelopment: 
 

a. New development: 90% removal of average annual load of TSS and 
60% removal of average annual load of Total Phosphorus; 
 
b. Redevelopment: 80% removal of average annual load of TSS and 50% 
removal of average annual load of Total Phosphorus. 

 
3.06 Enforcement 

 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 16 
1. The Building Commissioner and the Department of Public Works shall make 
inspections of all sites covered under these regulations within the Town and may, for 
these purposes, enter upon the premises where such operations are carried on at all 
reasonable times. 
 
2. The Select Board or the Reviewing Agent, acting through the Building Commissioner, 
DPW Director, or an authorized employee or agent, shall enforce these regulations, 
orders, violation notices, and enforcement orders, and may pursue all civil remedies 
for such violations. 
 
3. Civil Relief. If a person violates the provisions of these regulations, permit, notice, or 
order issued thereunder, the Select Board or the Reviewing Agent may seek injunctive 
relief in a court of competent jurisdiction restraining the person from activities which 
would create further violations or compelling the person to perform abatement or 
remediation of the violation. 
 
4. Orders. The Select Board or the Reviewing Agent may issue a written order to 
enforce the provisions of these regulations, which may include: 
 

(1) That practices, or operations, in defiance of these regulations shall cease 
and desist; and 
 
(2) Remediation of erosion, removal of sedimentation spilled beyond approved 
limits, in connection therewith; 
 
(3) Provision of maintenance to stormwater system in accordance with 
approved O&M plan. 

 
5. Suspension of construction or site alteration activity. In the event that the activity at 
a site violates the conditions as stated or shown on the approved soil erosion and 
sediment control plan or stormwater management plan in such a manner as the Select 
Board or the Reviewing Agent determines to adversely affect the environment, public 
welfare/health and municipal facilities, then the agent may suspend work until the 
violation is corrected. 
 
6. If the Select Board or the Reviewing Agent determines that abatement or 
remediation of contamination is required, the order shall set forth a deadline by which 
such abatement or remediation must be completed. Said order shall further advise 
that, should the violator or property owner fail to abate or perform remediation within 
the specified deadline, the Town of Truro may, at its option, undertake such work, and 
expenses thereof shall be charged to the violator. 
 
7. Within thirty (30) days after completing all measures necessary to abate the 
violation or to perform remediation, the violator and the property owner will be 
notified of the costs incurred by the Town of Truro including administrative costs. The 
violator or property owner may file a written protest objecting to the amount or basis 
of costs with the Select Board or the Reviewing Agent within thirty (30) days of receipt 
of the notification of the costs incurred. If the amount due is not received by the 
expiration of the time in which to file a protest or within thirty (30) days following a 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 17 
decision of the Select Board or the Reviewing Agent affirming or reducing the costs, or 
from a final decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, the costs shall become a 
special assessment against the property owner and shall constitute a lien on the 
owner's property for the amount of said costs. Interest shall begin to accrue on any 
unpaid costs at the statutory rate provided in MGL c. 59, § 57, after the 31st day at 
which the costs first become due. 
 
8. Civil Penalty. Any violation of any provision of these regulations, order or permit 
issued thereunder shall be punishable by a civil penalty of not more than $100 per 
violation. Each day or part thereof that such violation occurs or continues shall 
constitute a separate offense. 
 
9. Non-Criminal Disposition. As an alternative to criminal prosecution or civil action, 
the Town of Truro may elect to utilize the non-criminal disposition procedure set forth 
in MGL c. 40, § 21D, and Appendix A, of the Town of Truro General Bylaws. The fine 
for the first violation shall be $100. The fine for the second violation shall be $200. The 
fine for the third and all subsequent violations shall be $300. Each day or part thereof 
that such violation(s) occurs or continues shall constitute a separate offense. The 
Town of Truro may also impose additional penalties for reimbursement of labor 
and/or materials used to temporarily remedy the violation. 
 
 
10. Entry to Perform Duties Under these regulations. To the extent permitted by state 
law, or if authorized by the owner or other party in control of the property, the Board, 
its agents, officers, and employees may enter upon privately owned property for the 
purpose of performing their duties under these regulations and may make or cause to 
be made such examinations, surveys or sampling as the Board deems reasonably 
necessary. 
 
11. Appeals. The decisions or orders of the Select Board or the Reviewing Agent shall 
be final. Further relief shall be to a court of competent jurisdiction. 
 
12. Remedies Not Exclusive. The remedies listed in these regulations are not exclusive 
of any other remedies available under any applicable federal, state or local law. 

 
3.07 Severability 

 
The invalidity of any section or provision of this Bylaw shall not invalidate any other 
section or provision thereof, nor shall it invalidate any order of determination which 
previously has been issued. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Inter-Municipal Water Agreement between the Town of Provincetown and the Town of Truro. 
 



  Agenda Item: 6F7 18 
https://www.truro-ma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif3936/f/file/file/inter-
municipal_water_agreement_0.pdf 

 
 
**** INSERT STORMWATER SECTION into Appendix A, of the Town of Truro General Bylaws.  
   SUBJECT FINE $  ENFORCING AUTHORITY 
 
**** PLACE BYLAW into it’s own section within General Bylaws 
 

https://www.truro-ma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif3936/f/file/file/inter-municipal_water_agreement_0.pdf
https://www.truro-ma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif3936/f/file/file/inter-municipal_water_agreement_0.pdf


  Agenda Item: 6F8 1 
 

Planning Board Draft Warrant Article March 3, 2022 
 
PB 5 - Development Agreement Bylaw  
 

Draft Truro Bylaw 
01.0 Purpose and Intent: This bylaw/ordinance enables the Town of Truro to enter into development 
agreements consistent with the provisions of the Cape Cod Commission Act and Chapter D - Code of 
Cape Cod Commission Regulations of General Application. 
 
02.0 Definitions: In this Bylaw, the following words have the meanings indicated: 
 

02.1 Development Agreement: A contract entered into between the Commission and or a unit 
of a municipality or municipalities and a holder of property development rights, the principal 
purpose of which is to negotiate and to establish the development regulations that will apply to the 
subject property during the term of the agreement and to establish the conditions to which the 
development will be subject including, without limitation, a schedule of impact fees. 
 
02.2 Lead Community: The municipality where the proposed development is located.  Where 
more than one town is a signatory on a development agreement, the Lead Community shall by the 
municipality having the largest land area encompassed by the proposed development, or otherwise 
by consensus of the municipalities.  The Board of Selectmen/Town Manager or their designee 
shall be authorized to execute, on behalf of the Town, a development agreement. 
 
02.3 Qualified Applicant: A person who has a majority legal or equitable interest in the real 
property which is the subject of the development agreement.  A Qualified Applicant may be 
represented by an authorized agent. 

 
03.0 Authority: Notwithstanding provisions to the contrary, the Town of Truro is hereby authorized to 
enter into a development agreement with a Qualified Applicant provided the following conditions are met: 
 

03.1 The Town's Local Comprehensive Plan has been certified by the Cape Cod Commission as 
consistent with the Regional Policy Plan and said certification has not been revoked; 
 
03.2 The Town has adopted, either through an amendment to its zoning bylaw/ordinance or as a 
general Town bylaw, the enabling regulation contained in Sections 01.0 through Section 10.0, 
herein. 

 
04.0 Parties to Development Agreements: 
 
04.1 A development agreement may be executed by and between a Qualified Applicant and  
 

04.1.1 the Cape Cod Commission; or 



  Agenda Item: 6F8 2 
 
04.1.2 the Cape Cod Commission and a municipality or municipalities within which the 
development is located; or 
 
04.1.3 the Cape Cod Commission and a municipality or municipalities within which the 
development is located and with a state agency or agencies; or 
 
04.1.4 a municipality or municipalities within which the development is located; or 
 
04.1.5 a municipality or municipalities within which the development is located and a state 
agency or agencies. 

 
 
05.0 Negotiation and Execution of Development Agreements: 
 

05.1 Negotiation of the elements of a development agreement between authorized parties 
(Section 04.0) and a Qualified Applicant shall follow all pertinent rules of due process currently 
required for public meetings, public hearings, and ratification of board/council decisions. 
 
05.2 Negotiation of the elements of a development agreement between authorized parties 
(Section 04.0) and a Qualified Applicant shall be led by the Planning Board or its designee, and 
may include representatives from other municipal boards, departments and commissions where 
said joint participation will assist the negotiation process. 
 
05.3 No development agreement may be executed by the Board of Selectmen/ Town Manager 
prior to an affirmative, majority vote by the Planning Board (and Town Meeting?)recommending 
the execution of the development agreement. 
 
05.4 The Board of Selectmen/Town Manager may make minor amendments to the development 
agreement recommended by the Planning Board and execute said development agreement as 
amended, provided that such amendments do not alter the use, intensity or mitigation stipulations 
of the development agreement.  However, in no instance may the Board of Selectmen/ Town 
Manager make substantial amendments to the development agreement recommended by the 
Planning Board without first receiving written concurrence from the Planning Board and Qualified 
Applicant that said substantial amendments are agreed to. 
 
05.5 The Board of Selectmen/Town Manager or their designee shall be authorized to execute, 
on behalf of the town, a development agreement.  Prior to executing said development agreement, 
the Board of Selectmen shall, at a public meeting, vote to authorize said execution.  The Board of 
Selectmen/Town Manager shall, within seven (7) days of the vote authorizing the execution of the 
development agreement, cause said development agreement to be so executed and forward the 
same to the Qualified Applicant by certified, return receipt mail.  Within twenty-one (21) days of 
the date said development agreement has been mailed by the Board of Selectmen/Town Manager, 



  Agenda Item: 6F8 3 
the Qualified Applicant shall execute the agreement and return either by certified mail or hand 
delivery, the fully executed development agreement.   

 
 
06.0  Elements of Development Agreements: 
 

06.1 Proffers by a Qualified Applicant:  A development agreement may include, but is not 
limited to, the provisions whereby a Qualified Applicant agrees to provide certain benefits which 
contribute to one or more of the following: 
 

06.1.1 infrastructure; 
 
06.1.2 public capital facilities; 
 
06.1.3 land dedication and/ or preservation; 
 
06.1.4 affordable housing, either on or off-site; 
 
06.1.5 employment opportunities; 
 
06.1.6 community facilities; 
 
06.1.7 recreational facilities; 
 
06.1.8 any other benefit intended to serve the proposed development, municipality or 
county, including site design standards to ensure preservation of community character and 
natural resources.  

 
06.2 Proffers by a Lead Community:  A development agreement may include the provisions 
whereby a Lead Community and other municipality agree to provide certain protection from future 
changes in applicable local regulations and assistance in streamlining the local regulatory approval 
process.  Streamlining may include, where not in conflict with existing local, state or federal law, 
holding of joint hearings, coordination of permit applications and, where possible, accelerated 
review of permit approvals.  A development agreement may also provide for extensions of time 
within which development approvals under state, regional and local laws may be extended to 
coincide with the expiration of the development agreement established in Section 09.0, below.  
When the Cape Cod Commission is not a party to the development agreement, the land use 
development rights shall not vest with respect to Cape Cod Commission regulations and 
designations and the property shall be subject to subsequent changes in the Commission's 
regulations and designations. 

 
 



  Agenda Item: 6F8 4 
07.0 Procedural Requirements for Development Agreements Where the Cape Cod Commission is 
a Party to the Agreement: 

 
07.1 Where the Cape Cod Commission is to be a party to a development agreement, a Qualified 
Applicant shall complete a Development Agreement Application Form and comply with the 
specific requirements set forth in Section 5 of Chapter D of the Code of Cape Cod Commission 
Regulations of General Application, as revised.  
 
07.2 Where the Cape Cod Commission is to be a party to a development agreement, the 
procedural requirements established in Section 5 of Chapter D of the Code of Cape Cod 
Commission Regulations of General Application, as revised, shall be followed and no such 
development agreement shall be valid unless and until the requirements of said Section 5 of 
Chapter D have been complied with in full. 

 
 
08.0 Procedural Requirements for Development Agreements Where the Cape Cod Commission is 
Not a Party to the Agreement: 
 

08.1 Where the Cape Cod Commission is not to be a party to a development agreement, a 
Qualified Applicant shall complete a Development Agreement Application Form.  The 
Development Agreement Application Form shall include: 

 
(a) A fully completed Development of Regional Impact Application Form, including a 
certified list of abutters; 
 
(b) A legal description of the land subject to the agreement and the names of its legal 
and equitable owners; 
 
(c) The proposed duration of the agreement; 
 
(d) The development uses currently permitted on the land, and development uses 
proposed on the land including population densities, and building densities and height; 
 
(e) A description of public facilities that will service the development, including who 
shall provide such facilities, the date any new facilities will be constructed, and a schedule 
to assure public facilities adequate to serve the development are available concurrent with 
the impacts of the development; 
 
(f) A description of any reservation or dedication of land for public purposes; 
 
(g) A description of all local development permits approved or needed to be approved 
for the development of the land; 
 



  Agenda Item: 6F8 5 
(h) A statement indicating that the failure of the agreement to address a particular 
permit, condition, term, or restriction shall not relieve the Qualified Applicant of the 
necessity of complying with the law governing said permitting requirements, conditions, 
term or restriction; 
 
(i) A Final Environmental Impact Report, certified as adequate by the Secretary of 
Environmental Affairs, if required under sections 61-62h of chapter 30 of the general laws; 
 
(j) Additional data and analysis necessary to assess the impact of the proposed 
development, as determined by the Lead Community. 

 
08.2 All Qualified Applicants seeking to enter into a development agreement without the Cape 
Cod Commission as a party shall submit the proposed development to the Cape Cod Commission 
for a Jurisdictional Determination.  If the Cape Cod Commission determines that the proposed 
development is not a Development of Regional Impact, then the Qualified Applicant may pursue a 
development agreement without the Cape Cod Commission as a party.  If the Cape Cod 
Commission determines that the proposed development is a Development of Regional Impact, 
then the Cape Cod Commission must be a party to the development agreement, in which case, the 
provisions of Section 5 of Chapter D of the Code of Cape Cod Commission Regulations of 
General Application, as revised, shall apply.  If the Commission determines that the proposed 
development is not a Development of Regional Impact, then the provisions of Sections 08.3 
through 08.10 below, shall apply. 

 
08.3 The municipality which is a party, or when more than one municipality is a party, then the 
Lead Community shall assume the responsibility for overseeing the development agreement 
process.  The Lead Community shall hold a public hearing after receipt of a fully completed 
application from a Qualified Applicant for consideration of a proposed development agreement.  
At least one public hearing shall be held in at least one of the municipality(ies) in which the 
proposed development is located.  The public hearing regarding review of a development 
agreement shall not exceed ninety (90) days, unless extended by mutual agreement of the parties.  
Failure to close the public hearing within ninety (90) days shall not result in a constructive grant of 
the proposed development.  

  
08.4 When more than one municipality is a party to the agreement, then the Lead Community 
shall be responsible for overseeing the development agreement process as specified in these 
regulations.  Conflicts between the Lead Community and other municipality(ies) which are a party 
to the agreement shall be resolved through negotiation conducted by the relevant parties.  Because 
a development agreement is a voluntary process, unresolved disputes may result in one or more 
parties making a determination not to remain a party to the proposed development agreement. 

 
08.5 The municipality or Lead Community shall provide notice of the public hearing to consider 
a development agreement by publication as required by Sections 5(a) and (d) of the Cape Cod 



  Agenda Item: 6F8 6 
Commission Act and shall also provide notice to the Cape Cod Commission at least fourteen (14) 
days prior to such hearing. 
 
08.6 The qualified applicant shall bear the cost of providing notice of the public hearing to 
consider the proposed development agreement.  
 
08.7 The municipality or Lead Community shall review proposed development agreements for 
their consistency with the Cape Cod Commission Act and with the Regional Policy Plan and Local 
Comprehensive Plans.  The municipality or Lead Community shall obtain a determination from 
the Cape Cod Commission or its designee that a proposed development agreement is consistent 
with the Act, the Regional Policy Plan, and Local Comprehensive Plans prior to executing a 
development agreement. 
 
08.8 The municipality or Lead Community shall file its development agreement with the Clerk 
of the Cape Cod Commission and with the town clerk(s) of the municipality(ies) in which the 
development is located.  Notices of development agreements shall be published in a newspaper of 
general circulation in the municipality(ies) in which the development is located, including a brief 
summary of the contents of the development agreement and a statement that copies of the 
development agreement are available for public inspection at the town clerk's office during normal 
business hours of any municipality which is a party to the agreement.  In addition, the Lead 
Community shall provide the Cape Cod Commission with a summary of the development 
agreement which the Cape Cod Commission shall publish in its official publication pursuant to 
section 5(i) of the Cape Cod Commission Act. 
 
08.9 Development agreements shall be issued in a form suitable for recording in the Barnstable 
County Registry of Deeds.  The Lead Community shall record the development agreement in the 
Barnstable County Registry of Deeds and shall submit proof of such recording to the Town Clerk 
and the Cape Cod Commission Clerk within 14 days of such recording.  The qualified applicant 
shall bear the expense of recording. 
 
08.10 The cost for filing and processing of each development agreement shall be as established 
by the Board of Selectmen or Town Manager.  Said filing and processing fees shall be reviewed 
and if appropriate, revised annually. 

 
 
09.0 Limitations on Development Agreements: 
 

09.1 Nothing in this bylaw/ordinance may be construed to permit a municipality to require a 
Qualified Applicant to enter into a development agreement. 
 
09.2. A development agreement will commence and terminate as agreed by the parties, in 
writing, except as otherwise provided in this Section.  Where the Cape Cod Commission is not a 
party, a development agreement shall not exceed ten (10) years, however, provisions in the 



  Agenda Item: 6F8 7 
development agreement pertaining to the preservation of open space and park areas, and 
agreement to pay for maintenance of utilities and other infrastructure may exceed such ten year 
limitation.  Where the Cape Cod Commission is a party, a development agreement may extend for 
a longer period of time than that noted above, as set forth in Section 7 of the Code of Cape Cod 
Commission Regulations of General Application, as revised. 
 
09.3 A development agreement may not be used to prevent a Lead Community or other 
governmental agency from requiring a Qualified Applicant to comply with the laws, rules and 
regulations and policies enacted after the date of the development agreement, if the Lead 
Community or governmental agency determines that the imposition and compliance with the 
newly effective laws and regulations is essential to ensure the public health, safety or welfare of 
the residents of all or part of the jurisdiction. 

 
10.0 Amendments and Rescission: 
 

10.1 Where the Cape Cod Commission is not a party to the development agreement, any party 
to the agreement may petition the Lead Community to amend or rescind the development 
agreement.  The petitioning party shall provide notice to all parties to the agreement and to the 
Cape Cod Commission of its intention to amend or rescind the agreement by providing such 
parties and the Cape Cod Commission with a copy of the petition seeking such amendment or 
rescission.  When the Lead Community initiates an amendment or rescission, it shall provide 
notice, in writing, to all other parties to the agreement and to the Cape Cod Commission.  The 
process for amendment or rescission shall follow the procedures for adoption outlined above. 

 
10.2 When the Cape Cod Commission is a party to the development agreement, any other party 
to the development agreement may petition the Commission to amend or rescind the development 
agreement.  Such petition shall be made in writing, on a form provided by the Cape Cod 
Commission.  The petitioning party shall provide notice to all parties to the development 
agreement and to the Commission of its intention to amend or rescind the agreement by providing 
such parties and the Commission with a copy of the petition seeking such amendment or 
rescission.  When the Commission initiates an amendment or rescission, it shall provide notice, in 
writing, to all other parties to the agreement.  The process for amendment or rescission shall 
follow the procedures for adoption outlined above. 

 
 
11.0 Enforcement: 
 

11.1 A development agreement is a binding contract which is enforceable in law or equity by a 
Massachusetts court of competent jurisdiction. 

 
 
 
 



  Agenda Item: 6F8 8 
 
12.0 Severability: 
 

0.12.1 If any provision of this bylaw is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remainder of the bylaw shall not be affected thereby.  The invalidity of any section or sections or 
parts of any section or sections of this bylaw shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the 
[town]’s zoning bylaw. 

 
 



 

Agenda Item: 6G 
  

TOWN OF TRURO 
 Select Board Agenda Item  

 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Darrin Tangeman, Town Manager 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE: March 8, 2022 
 
ITEM: Discussion and Possible Vote to Recommend CPC Warrant Articles 
 
EXPLANATION:  Attached for review, discussion and vote to recommend are the Community Preservation 
Act articles provided by the Community Preservation Committee (CPC) for the 2022 Annual Town Meeting. Co-
Chair of the Community Preservation Committee, Mary Rose, will be available to answer questions on the 
articles. All articles were voted to recommend unanimously by the CPC. 
 
As requested by the Select Board, these articles are separate article numbers, rather than individual sections 
of one overarching “Community Preservation Act Fund” article.   
 
Town Counsel has reviewed these items and approves their form.  The Board may opt to consider some or all 
of these articles at a subsequent meeting, with the understanding that there is presently one regularly 
scheduled meeting between tonight and the time that the Warrant needs to go to the printer. An additional 
work session meeting and potentially another regular meeting in March may be required to ensure enough 
time to vote on all of the Warrant articles. 
 
The form of vote is positive, motion to recommend, and will be recorded in the warrant as # of yes votes - # of 
no votes - # of abstentions in favor, e.g. 5-0-0 in favor. Once the votes are completed, they will be added to 
the draft Warrant. Article numbers will be assigned as the Warrant is finalized. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:   
Motion to recommend {insert article title here} as printed. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

1. CPC Warrant Articles for 2022 Annual Town Meeting 

 



  Agenda Item: 6G1 

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION ACT ARTICLES 
 

Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Contribution to the Affordable Housing 
Trust Fund 

(Community 
Housing) 

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Three Hundred Thousand dollars 
and no cents ($300,000.00) from Projected Fiscal Year 2023 Community Preservation 
Act Surcharge Revenue, to contribute to the Truro Affordable Housing Trust Fund, and 
to enter into a grant agreement to set forth the terms and conditions thereof, or take any 
other action relative thereto.   

Requested by Truro Housing Authority 

Explanation: If a fund of money is immediately available to the Housing Authority, then 
the Housing Authority will have time to act on opportunities that would be lost if the 
Housing Authority had to wait for Town Meeting or beyond to request money for a 
legitimate Community Housing project. 

Finance Committee Recommendation    
Select Board Recommendation    

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation  0 0 
 

Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Housing Consultant 
(Community 

Housing) 
To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Twenty-five Thousand dollars and 
no cents ($25,000.00) from Projected Fiscal Year 2023 Community Preservation Act 
Surcharge Revenue, to provide technical assistance to the Truro Housing Authority, and 
to enter into a grant agreement to set forth the terms and conditions thereof, or take any 
other action relative thereto.  

Requested by Truro Housing Authority 

Explanation: The Truro Housing Authority needs to continue receiving professional 
expertise in developing and implementing housing projects.  The consultant will not be a 
full or part-time employee of the Town, but rather will work on particular projects on an 
“as needed” basis.   These funds will be used for a consultant to continue to work on 
property acquisition, planning and educational programs on housing needs.  

Finance Committee Recommendation    
Select Board Recommendation    

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation    



  Agenda Item: 6G1 

 
Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Lower Cape Housing Institute 

(Community Housing) 
To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Fifteen Thousand dollars and no 
cents ($15,000.00) from Projected Fiscal Year 2023 Community Preservation Act 
Surcharge Revenue, to provide support for the regional Lower Cape Housing Institute 
offered by the Community Development Partnership, Inc., and to enter into a grant 
agreement to set forth the terms and conditions thereof, or take any other action relative 
thereto.    

Requested by the Community Development Partnership 

Explanation: The Community Development Partnership (CDP) is offering the Lower 
Cape Housing Institute for a sixth year. The CDP seeks contributions from the eight 
participating towns towards the costs of continued training and technical assistance to 
develop better understanding of Community Housing needs and to support the town in 
meeting its housing production goals.  Sessions are free to Town officials and other 
interested parties.  CDP expects to continue large audience virtual sessions on 
particular topics and hold in-person peer group meetings. 

Finance Committee Recommendation    
Select Board Recommendation    

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation    
 

  



  Agenda Item: 6G1 

Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Orleans Cape Cod Five Housing 
(Community Housing) 

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of One Hundred Thousand dollars 
and no cents ($100,000.00) from Projected Fiscal Year 2023 Community Preservation 
Act Surcharge Revenue, to provide regional support for the creation of 62 year-round 
family rental units at 19 West Road, Orleans, Massachusetts by Pennrose, LLC, and to 
enter into a grant agreement which shall include the acquisition of n affordable housing 
restriction on behalf of the Town to set forth the terms and conditions thereof, or take 
any other action relative thereto.  

Requested by Pennrose, LLC 

Explanation: The project includes the re-use of the former Cape Cod 5 bank 
headquarters combined with new addition and construction of two separate townhouse 
buildings, as mixed-income housing, including 52 affordable units and 10 workforce 
apartments, at varying income levels including up to 30%, 60%, 100% and 120% of the 
area median income.  Six units are fully accessible, and two units will be planned for 
visually or hearing impaired.  There will also be “visitable” units allowing visitors access 
into the units and bathrooms.  Construction is expected to begin in late 2022 or early 
2023.   

Finance Committee Recommendation    
Select Board Recommendation    

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation    
 
Article XX: Community Preservation Act: High Head Trail Development 

(Open Space) 
To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Seventy-eight Thousand dollars 
and no cents ($78,000.00) from Projected Fiscal Year 2023 Community Preservation 
Act Surcharge Revenue, to develop a trail system on the High Head Conservation land, 
jointly owned by Truro Conservation Commission and the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts, and to enter into a grant agreement to set forth the terms and 
conditions thereof, or take any other action relative thereto.  

Requested by the Truro Conservation Trust 

Explanation: A trail for the High Head Conservation area will both protect the land and 
open it to public access.  The project includes 1 ½ miles of trails, six benches at resting 
and viewing locations, and educational signs.  The trail system will extend from the 
existing Rte. 6 parking area to the Town Beach parking at 207 Shore Rd.  The Truro 
Conservation Trust will be responsible for stewardship of the property, trails, benches 
and educational stations. 

Finance Committee Recommendation    
Select Board Recommendation    

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation    
 



  Agenda Item: 6G1 

 
Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Memorials for Payomet Peoples—Phase 
1 

(Historical Preservation) 
To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Thirty-seven Thousand, Five 
Hundred dollars and no cents ($37,500.00) from Projected Fiscal Year 2023 Community 
Preservation Act Surcharge Revenue for the Truro Historical Commission and the Truro 
Historical Society to establish possible commemorative memorials and monuments for 
the Payomet Peoples  
and to enter into a grant agreement to set forth the terms and conditions thereof, or take 
any other action relative thereto.  

Requested by the Truro Historical Commission & the Truro Historical Society 

Explanation: The Truro Historical Commission & the Truro Historical Society with a 
team, including members of the Wampanoag Nation, will evaluate possibilities for 
design and location of memorials and monuments honoring Truro’s Native Peoples.  
The Pamet area, Corn Hill, and the Highlands/Tashmuit are three locations under 
consideration, but others may be identified.   

Finance Committee Recommendation    
Select Board Recommendation    

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation    
 
  



  Agenda Item: 6G1 

Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Acquisition Fund for Highland House 
Museum 

(Historical Preservation) 
To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Forty-nine Thousand, Four 
Hundred & forty dollars and no cents ($49,440.00) using Thirty Thousand, Two Hundred 
Sixty-nine dollars and no cents ($30,269.00) from Projected Fiscal Year 2023 
Community Preservation Act Surcharge Revenue and Nineteen Thousand, One 
Hundred Seventy-one dollars and no cents ($19,171.) from Fiscal Year 2022 Budgeted 
Reserve Funds  for the acquisition of Truro art, Wampanoag artifacts, and the 
restoration of a centuries-old loom, and to enter into a grant agreement to set forth the 
terms and conditions thereof, or take any other action relative thereto.  

Requested by the Truro Historical Society 

Explanation: The Truro Historical Society intends to increase the depth of the Highland 
House Museum’s collection and repair a late 18th – early 19th century loom that was 
donated to the museum in 1973.   The collection of donated works by Truro-based 
artists or featuring Truro would be augmented by purchases.  The museum seeks to 
acquire a permanent collection of authentic Wampanoag art and artifact, including a 
wet8 (pronounced wetu).  The loom, donated by Miss Schumann of South Truro with 
parts and supplies donated by John Kelly and Erma Allen is still missing parts needed to 
return it to working order.   

Finance Committee Recommendation    
Select Board Recommendation    

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation    
 

 
 
 
  



  Agenda Item: 6G1 

Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Town Records—Phase 1 
(Historical Preservation) 

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of One Hundred and Six Thousand, 
dollars and no cents ($106,000.00) using Seventeen Thousand, Four hundred Eighty-
one dollars and Ninety-two cents ($27,713) from Projected Fiscal Year 2023 Community 
Preservation Act Surcharge Revenue and Eighty-eight Thousand, Five Hundred, 
Eighteen dollars and Eight cents ($78,287) from the Fiscal Year 2022 Budgeted 
Reserve for the preservation and restoration of Truro’s oldest records and accessibility 
for all permanent records, and to enter into a grant agreement to set forth the terms and 
conditions thereof, or take any other action relative thereto.  

Requested by the Truro Town Clerk and Town Manager 

Explanation: The project will preserve and restore Truro’s oldest records that date back 
to the 17th century and provide adequate storage and accessibility for all permanent 
records within the Town of Truro.  In Phase 1, a third-party will inventory and index 
Town Hall documents, digitalize and scan them into and an online portal.   Digitalization 
of the records ensures continuity, disaster recovery and wide availability to the public.   

Finance Committee Recommendation    
Select Board Recommendation    

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation    
 

 
Article XX: Community Preservation Act: 9 Mobi Mats or Equivalent and Fencing 
for Improved Beach Access 

(Recreation) 
To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Forty Thousand, Five Hundred 
Sixty-four dollars and no cents ($40,564.00) from Projected Fiscal Year 2023 
Community Preservation Act Surcharge Revenue for the purchase of Mobi-mats and 
Mobi-fencing or their equivalents for Town beaches, and to enter into a grant agreement 
to set forth the terms and conditions thereof, or take any other action relative thereto, or 
take any other action relative thereto.  

Requested by the Truro Disabilities Commission 

Explanation: Wider Mobi-Mats will improve pedestrian access at three Town beaches: 
Head of the Meadow, Coast Guard, and Corn Hill.  Fencing at Head of the Meadow 
Beach will prevent sand and shorebirds from settling on the mats there.  The mats and 
fencing will make the beaches accessible to all in a safe and ecological way.  The 
portable mats will be rolled up and stored by the DPW during the off-season. 

Finance Committee Recommendation    
Select Board Recommendation    

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation    
 



  Agenda Item: 6G1 

Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Truro Beach Paddlecraft Racks 
(Recreation) 

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Six Thousand, Nine Hundred 
Forty dollars and no cents ($6,940.00) from the Fiscal Year 2022 Budgeted Reserve for 
design and construction of paddlecraft racks at several Town beaches, and to enter into 
a grant agreement to set forth the terms and conditions thereof, or take any other action 
relative thereto, or take any other action relative thereto.  

Requested by the Truro Beach Advisory Committee 

Explanation: Paddlecraft racks for kayaks, stand-up paddleboards and other small boats 
have never been available before at Truro beaches.  The racks will help control dune 
erosion caused by prior storage of paddlecraft and kayaks in the dunes.  All paddlecraft 
will be registered, ID’d and permitted through the Beach Office.  The racks will be 
designed to withstand the elements and last for many years.  Construction and 
maintenance will be performed by the Truro DPW. 

Finance Committee Recommendation    
Select Board Recommendation    

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation    
 

Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Truro Library Edible Forest 
(Recreation) 

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Fifteen Thousand, Eight Hundred 
dollars and no cents ($15,800.00) from the Fiscal Year 2022 Budgeted Reserve for 
establishment of an edible forest path on Town-owned property between the Library and 
Sally’s Way, and to enter into a grant agreement to set forth the terms and conditions 
thereof, or take any other action relative thereto, or take any other action relative 
thereto.  

Requested by the Truro Library Board of Trustees, Friends of the Public Library and 
Sustainable CAPE 

Explanation: The Edible Forest will build upon the library’s collaboration with 
Sustainable CAPE (Center for Agricultural Preservation & Education).  The project will 
reclaim an unused area with edible indigenous plantings, a simple irrigation system, 
shaded outdoor spaces, and educational signage.  This new public garden will create a 
beautiful path while providing landscape education and free, healthful food. 

Finance Committee Recommendation    
Select Board Recommendation    

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation    
 

  



  Agenda Item: 6G1 

Article XX: Community Preservation Act: 12 Histories of Pond Village & Fishing 
Industry at Cold Storage Beach 

(Recreation) 
To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Four Thousand, Nine Hundred 
Thirty-six dollars and no cents ($4,936.00) from the Fiscal Year 2022 Budgeted Reserve 
for two interpretive graphic displays at Cold Storage Beach, and to enter into a grant 
agreement to set forth the terms and conditions thereof, or take any other action relative 
thereto, or take any other action relative thereto.  

Requested by the Pond Village Preservation Committee 

Explanation: Two historical displays to commemorate the history of Cold Storage Beach 
and Pond Village.  The first installation will be designed to explain the role trap fishing 
and the role of the plant at Cold Storage Beach. A second panel will focus on Pond 
Village and its place in history and the greater Truro community.  The group is 
coordinating with the DPW, the Truro Historical Commission and the Truro Historical 
Society to protect and restore the history for future generations. 

Finance Committee Recommendation    
Select Board Recommendation    

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation    
 

 

 

Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Administrative Support 
 
To see if the Town will vote to appropriate the sum of Thirty-three Thousand, Eight 
Hundred, Eighty-four dollars and no cents ($33,884.00) from Projected Fiscal Year 2023 
Community Preservation Act Surcharge Revenue for the administrative expenses of the 
Community Preservation Committee, or take any other action relative thereto.  

Requested by Community Preservation Committee 

Explanation: The Community Preservation Act and the Truro Community Preservation 
Bylaws permit 5% of the projected Community Preservation Act surcharge revenue can 
be used for management of CPC operations, as well as for workshops, seminars, 
membership in the Community Preservation Coalition, printing, advertising and 
supplies.  Any money remaining at the end of the Fiscal Year will revert to the 
Community Preservation Act Undesignated Fund Balance. 

Finance Committee Recommendation    
Select Board Recommendation    

Community Preservation Committee Recommendation    
 

 



 

Agenda Item: 6H 
  

TOWN OF TRURO 
 Select Board Agenda Item  

 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Darrin Tangeman, Town Manager 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE: March 8, 2022 
 
ITEM: Review and Vote of Annual Town Meeting Articles 
 
EXPLANATION:  Attached for review, discussion and vote to recommend are select articles from the Annual 
Town Meeting Warrant.  In addition to the Community Preservation Act articles presented in the previous 
agenda item, the articles presented for tonight’s discussion are: 

• Article X: Shellfish Revolving Fund 
• Article X: General Override 
• Article XX: Home Rule Petition to Establish a Tax Workoff Program for Persons with Disabilities 
• Article XX: Home Rule Petition to Impose a 0.5% Real Estate Transfer Fee 

 
Town Counsel has reviewed these items and approves their form.  The Board may opt to consider some or all 
of these articles at a subsequent meeting, with the understanding that there is presently one regularly 
scheduled meeting between tonight and the time that the Warrant needs to go to the printer. An additional 
work session meeting and potentially another regular meeting in March may be required to ensure enough 
time to vote on all of the Warrant articles. 
 
The Warrant closed for the submission of articles on February 25, 2022 at 4 pm. The deadline for financial 
articles was February 4, 2022. The petitioned articles are included as attachments and have been certified. 
They may be considered for discussion or vote to recommend, however, please note that Town Counsel has 
not yet reviewed these articles.  
 
The form of vote is positive, motion to recommend, and will be recorded in the warrant as # of yes votes - # of 
no votes - # of abstentions in favor, e.g. 5-0-0 in favor. Once the votes are completed, they will be added to 
the draft Warrant. Article numbers will be assigned as the Warrant is finalized. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:   
Motion to recommend {insert article title here} as printed. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Town Meeting Articles for Consideration at 3/8/22 Meeting 
2. Petitioned Articles (7) 

 



  Agenda Item: 6H1 

Article X: Shellfish Revolving Fund 
To see if the Town will vote to establish the Shellfish Program Revolving Fund under the 
authority of MGL Chapter 44 Section 53E½. The revolving fund shall be available for 
expenditure by the Harbormaster/ Shellfish Constable, with the approval of the Town Manager, 
to fund expenses related to Shellfish propagation efforts. The total authorized expenditures 
from the fund shall not exceed two thousand dollars in any one fiscal year. As per MGL 
Chapter 44 Section 53E½, expenditures from the fund shall not exceed the balance in the fund 
nor the total authorized expenditures established by Annual Town Meeting. The fund will not 
be used to pay salary, wages or benefits of any full time employee. The fund shall be subject 
to annual authorization by Annual Town Meeting; 

and furthermore to amend Section 1.1.8 of the General Bylaws to include the Shellfish 
Program Revolving Fund as follows (additions in bold underline, deletions in strike through): 

There is hereby established in the Town of Truro pursuant to G.L. c. 44, §53 ½ the following 
Revolving Funds: 

Revolving Fund Authorized to Spend Fund Revenue Source Use of Fund 
Council on Aging Director of Council on Aging Program Fees Development 

and Promotion 
of Programs 

Shellfish Program Harbormaster/ Shellfish 
Warden 

The First $2,000 
of Shellfish 

Permit Receipts 
Received in the 

Fiscal Year 

Shellfish 
Propagation 

Efforts 

 

Expenditures from the revolving funds set forth herein shall be subject to the limitation 
established annually by Town Meeting or any increase therein as may be authorized in 
accordance with G.L. c. 44, §53 ½. 
 

and furthermore to set the spending limit for the Shellfish Program Revolving Fund for Fiscal 
Year 2023 at two thousand dollars ($2,000) pursuant to Section 1.1.8 of the General Bylaws;  

or to take any other action relative thereto. 

Requested by the Shellfish Advisory Committee and the Harbormaster/ Shellfish Warden 

 

Explanation: This article would provide the Harbormaster/ Shellfish Warden the ability to 
purchase seed or expend funds for the purpose of the Shellfish Program and propagation 
efforts. Often, seed availability, advantageous seed pricing and grant programs come up 
unexpectedly. Having a revolving fund established for this purpose would allow the 
Harbormaster/ Shellfish Constable to take advantage of these opportunities without having 
previously budgeted for them. Up to $2,000 of Shellfish Program receipts would go into this 
fund annually for these purposes. The remaining receipts would continue to be receipts 
reserved for appropriation. 



  Agenda Item: 6H1 

 

Finance Committee Recommendation    
Select Board Recommendation    

 
 

 

  



  Agenda Item: 6H1 

Article X: General Override 
To see if the Town will vote to add four (4) full-time firefighter/EMTs or firefighter/paramedics to 
the Fire/Rescue Department’s staffing, effective July 1, 2022, to raise and appropriate the sum 
of Three Hundred fifty-five thousand, seven hundred sixty-five dollars and no cents 
($355,765.00), of which $262,565 be appropriated to the Fire/Rescue Salary and Wage budget 
(01022051), and $65,400 be appropriated to the Group Health Insurance: Town Share budget 
(01091451) and that $24,800 be appropriated to the Fire/Rescue Supplies (01022054) and 
that $3,000 be appropriated to the Fire/Rescue Services budget (01022052); provided, 
however, that if the Town receives a Safer grant for the new positions prior to October 1, 2022, 
that $327,965 be appropriated to  the Fire/Rescue Capital budget (01022058), and that 
$24,800 be appropriated to the Fire/Rescue Supplies (01022054) and $3,000 be appropriated 
to Fire/ Rescue Services budget (01022052), and further to make this appropriation contingent 
upon the passage of an override ballot question under Chapter 59, Section 21C(g) of the 
General Laws (Proposition 2 ½), or to take any other relative thereto. 

Requested by the Select Board 

 

Explanation: The proposed override would help address staffing and employee retention 
issues facing the Fire & Rescue Department. Presently, the department has a staff of nine plus 
the Chief to cover the 24/7/365 operation. Due to inadequate staffing, vacancies created by 
resignation, injury or leave occur more frequently and can have severe and negative 
consequences on the ability to provide service, as evidenced by a series of resignations that 
occurred in August and September of 2021. The addition of four firefighter/paramedics would 
reduce the impact of staffing shortages, create safer working conditions for Truro firefighters, 
and improve critical response times for fire and rescue service for our community members.  

A regional Emergency Medical Service study is near completion and concurs with the 
need for additional EMS staff in Truro. The study examined the current service model and the 
anticipated changes to the provision of EMS services in Truro. The four additional personnel 
requested will allow the department to operate three-person shifts, which will help the staffing 
levels meet community demand if contracted EMS service providers are no longer able to 
operate. A grant was requested from the federal SAFER Grant Program, which would fund four 
firefighters and their wages and benefits, for a three year period. This article would cover the 
cost of the four firefighter positions, associated equipment, and associated health insurance 
costs, if the grant is not received. If the federal grant is awarded, the override will cover the 
cost of equipment, including an ambulance for the department, eliminating the need for future 
capital exclusion debt and interest payments that would be paid on borrowed funds. Approving 
this article and ratifying the vote at the Annual Election ballot will allow the personnel to be 
funded indefinitely, so that in three years when awarded grants expire or in the event that the 
grant is not awarded, the salaries for these positions will remain in the Department’s 
operational budget. 

Finance Committee Recommendation    
Select Board Recommendation    

 



  Agenda Item: 6H1 

Article XX: Home Rule Petition to Establish a Tax Workoff Program for Persons with 
Disabilities 
To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board to petition the General Court for 
special legislation authorizing the Town to establish a program to reduce property tax liability in 
exchange for volunteer services for persons with disabilities as set forth below; provided, 
however, that the General Court may make clerical or editorial changes of form only to said 
bill, unless the Select Board approves amendments thereto prior to enactment by the General 
Court, and provided further that the Select Board is hereby authorized to approve amendments 
which shall be within the scope of the general public objectives of this petition. 

AN ACT AUTHORIZING  
THE TOWN OF TRURO 

TO ESTABLISH A PROGRAM TO REDUCE PROPERTY TAX LIABILITY IN EXCHANGE FOR 
VOLUNTEER SERVICES FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

 
The Town of Truro may establish program to allow persons with disabilities over the age 

of 18 or a member of their household to volunteer to provide services to the town. In exchange 
for such volunteer services, the town shall reduce the real property tax obligations of such 
person with disability on the tax bills of the person’s legal residence or whomever the disabled 
individual dedicates their work to be credited to and any reduction so provided shall be in 
addition to any exemption or abatement to which any such person or person in the household is 
otherwise entitled and no such person shall receive a rate of, or be credited with, more than the 
current minimum wage of the commonwealth per hour for services provided pursuant to such 
reduction nor shall the reduction of the real property tax bill exceed $1,500 in a given tax year. 
For the purposes of this program, a “person with disability” shall be defined as “a person who 
has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities, a 
person who has a history or record of such an impairment, or a person who is perceived by 
others as having such an impairment and proof of disability documented by one (1) of the 
following: a) statements or letters on a physician's/medical professional's letterhead stationary; 
b) statements, records or letters from a Federal Government agency that issues or provides 
disability benefits; c) statements, records or letters from a State Vocational Rehabilitation 
Agency counselor or; d) certification from a private Vocational Rehabilitation or other Counselor 
that issues or provides disability benefits. It shall be the responsibility of the town to maintain a 
record for each program-participating taxpaying property member including, but not limited to, 
the number of hours of service and the total amount by which the real property tax has been 
reduced and to provide a copy of such record to the assessor in order that the actual tax bill 
reflect the reduced rate. Proof of disability documents shall be verified by the assessor and shall 
not be open to public inspection. A copy of such record shall also be provided to the taxpayer 
prior to the issuance of the actual tax bill. The town shall have the power to create local rules 
and procedures for implementing this section in any way consistent with the intent of this 
section. 

In no instance shall the amount by which a person's property tax liability is reduced in 
exchange for the provision of services be considered income, wages, or employment for 
purposes of taxation as provided in chapter 62, for the purposes of withholding taxes as 
provided in chapter 62B, for the purposes of workers' compensation as provided in chapter 152 
or any other applicable provisions of the General Laws, but such person while providing such 
services shall be considered a public employee for the purposes of chapter 258, but such 



  Agenda Item: 6H1 

services shall be deemed employment for the purposes of unemployment insurance as provided 
in chapter 151A. 

or to take any other action relative thereto. 

Requested by the Select Board 

 

Explanation: This article would allow the Select Board to petition the General Court for special 
legislation that would allow the Town of Truro to establish a program that would allow persons 
with disabilities to provide volunteer services to the town in exchange for a reduction in the real 
property tax obligation on the person’s home. The program would be similar to the “Senior Tax 
Work-off Program” that is already in existence in Truro. Similar to the Senior Tax Work-off 
Program, the “Persons With Disabilities Tax Work-off Program” would be capped at $15,000 a 
year of property tax reductions for the entire program. Once approved by the General Court, 
$15,000 would be allocated in the FY2024 overlay budget to off-set the tax reductions to 
individuals. This article originated as a Disabilities Commission article that ultimately the Select 
Board chose to request because of the Board’s support for the proposed program. Please note 
that while the proposed Act allows for up to a $1,500 reduction to match the existing 
Massachusetts General Law for the Senior Tax Program, currently the Town of Truro caps the 
program for Senior volunteers at $1,000 per individual and it is likely that the Select Board 
would establish the same cap for the program for Persons with Disabilities. 

 

 

Select Board Recommendation    
Disabilities Commission    

 
  



  Agenda Item: 6H1 

Article XX: Home Rule Petition to Impose a 0.5% Real Estate Transfer Fee 
To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to petition the General Court 
for special legislation authorizing the Town to impose a 0.5% real estate transfer fee as set 
forth below; provided, however, that the General Court may make clerical or editorial changes 
of form only to said bill, unless the Board of Selectmen approves amendments thereto prior to 
enactment by the General Court, and provided further that the Board of Selectmen is hereby 
authorized to approve amendments which shall be within the scope of the general public 
objectives of this petition. 

AN ACT AUTHORIZING  
THE TOWN OF TRURO  

TO IMPOSE A 0.5% REAL ESTATE TRANSFER FEE 
 

Section 1. There is hereby imposed a real estate transfer fee equal to 0.5% (half 
percent, ½%) of the purchase price upon the transfer of any real property interest in any real 
property situated in the Town of Truro. Said fee shall be the liability of the purchaser of such 
property interest, and any agreement between the purchaser and the seller or any other person 
with reference to the allocation of the responsibility for bearing said fee shall not affect such 
liability of the purchaser. The fee shall be paid to the Town of Truro.  Fifty percent (50%) of the 
funds collected in each fiscal year shall be deposited in the Town’s Capital Improvement 
Stabilization Fund and the remaining fifty percent (50%) shall be deposited into the Town’s 
Affordable Housing Stabilization Fund. 

Section 2. The following transfers of real property interests shall be exempt from the real 
estate transfer fee:  

A. First time homebuyers who live in the home for at least 5 years. A lien shall accompany 
the deed stating that “There is running with the land a lien equal to the amount of fee 
exempted, plus accumulated interest and penalties until such time as all conditions of this 
sub-section are met.” 

B. Transfers to the government of the U.S., the Commonwealth, the Town of Truro and any 
of their instrumentalities, agencies or sub-divisions, such as the Truro Housing Authority.  

C. Transfers made without additional consideration to confirm, correct, modify or supplement 
a transfer previously made.  

D. Transfers of convenience with consideration under $100 which include: name change, 
into trusts, out of trust, etc.  

E. Transfers to any charitable organization as defined in Clause 3 of Section 5 of Chapter 59 
of the General Laws or any religious organization providing that the real property interests 
so transferred will be held solely for public charitable or religious purposes.  

F. Transfers between family members, marriage partners, parents and children, 
grandchildren, stepparents and stepchildren, brothers and sisters. 

Section 3. 

A. The fee imposed shall be due at the time of the transfer of the real property interest.  



  Agenda Item: 6H1 

B. The buyer shall pay interest on any unpaid amount of the fee at the rate the Town 
collects on unpaid real estate taxes. 

C. The Town shall notify a buyer by registered or certified mail of any failure to discharge the 
amount in full of fee due.  

D. All fees and interest required to be paid under this Act shall constitute a personal debt of 
the buyer and may be recovered in an action of contract. 

Section 4. This Act shall take effect on passage;  

 

or to take any other action relative thereto. 

Requested by the Board of Selectmen 

 

Explanation: The purpose of the article is to allow the Select Board to petition the General 
Court for special legislation that would allow the Town of Truro to establish a 0.5% real estate 
transfer fee.  Once the legislation passes at the State level, the Town would be able to 
establish the transfer fee.  The primary purpose of the real estate transfer fee would be to 
support the Town’s Capital Improvement Stabilization Fund and Affordable Housing in Truro.  
This would provide an alternative funding source for the Town to protect, maintain and develop 
the necessary infrastructure for Town property and operations and to have a dedicated funding 
stream for affordable housing. The tax would be paid by the purchaser and there are several 
exemptions to the fee including for first time home buyers and transfers between family 
members.  

This article was approved by the voters at the 2019 Annual Town Meeting (Article 15) but has 
not been approved by the legislature. To continue to petition the General Court for this special 
legislation, Town Meeting must approve this article. This article was updated to reflect the 
motion made on Town Meeting floor to deposit 50% of the fees collected into the Capital 
Improvement Stabilization Fund and 50% of the fees into the Affordable Housing Trust Fund.  

Finance Committee Recommendation    
Select Board Recommendation    



  Agenda Item: 6H1 

 



Agenda Item: 6H2















































































 
 

Agenda Item: 6I 

TOWN OF TRURO 
Select Board Agenda Item  

AMENDED 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:   Emily Beebe, Health & Conservation Agent, and Barbara Carboni, Town Planner & Land Use 
Counsel 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  March 8, 2022 
 
ITEM: Referral of Zoning Bylaw Amendments 
 
EXPLANATION:   Emily Beebe, Health & Conservation Agent, and Barbara Carboni, Town Planner & Land Use 
Counsel, have spent months modifying the Town’s Floodplain Bylaw to conform to a new model bylaw that 
brings the Town into compliance with National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) requirements. Compliance 
with NFIP is essential for the Town and homeowners to ensure continued participation in the program and 
establishes a mechanism to ensure this compliance during review. Failure to amend this bylaw within the 
calendar year places the Town and homeowners at risk for loss of coverage.  

Upon receipt of these amendments, the Select Board has fourteen (14) days to refer the articles to the 
Planning Board for public hearings. The Planning Board must then schedule a public hearing within 65-days of 
this referral. The public hearing is in the process of being scheduled and advertised.  

The Board will have an opportunity to take a vote to recommend the article at a subsequent Select Board 
meeting. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  This would not be in compliance with the required actions pursuant to MGL 
c.40A, §5. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  MOTION TO refer the proposed bylaw amendment to the Planning Board to begin the 
necessary public hearing process pursuant to MGL c.40A, §5. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Draft Floodplain Bylaw 

 



§ 30.5 Flood Plain District  

A. Purpose. To provide that the land in the Town of Truro subject to seasonal or periodic flooding, tidal 

surges, and wave wash shall be used in such a manner as to promote the health, safety and welfare of 

the residents thereof and of the public generally, to protect property and so as to not burden the Town 

with costs resulting from unwise land use.  

The purpose of the Floodplain Overlay District is to: 

 

1) Ensure public safety through reducing the threats to life and personal injury 

2) Eliminate new hazards to emergency response officials 

3) Prevent the occurrence of public emergencies resulting from water quality, 

contamination, and pollution due to flooding 

4) Avoid the loss of utility services which if damaged by flooding would disrupt or shut 

down the utility network and impact regions of the community beyond the site of 

flooding 

5) Eliminate costs associated with the response and cleanup of flooding conditions 

6) Reduce damage to public and private property resulting from flooding waters 

 

B. District Boundaries: The Floodplain District is herein established as an overlay district. The District 

includes all special flood hazard areas within the Town of Truro designated as Zone AE, AO, or VE on the 

Barnstable County Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) issued by the Federal Emergency Management 

Agency (FEMA) for the administration of the National Flood Insurance Program. The map panels of the 

Barnstable County FIRM that are wholly or partially within the Town of Truro are panel numbers 

25001C0109J, 25001C0117J, 25001C0128J, 25001C0136J, 25001C0137J, 25001C0138J, 25001C0139J, 

25001C0141J, 25001C0143J, 25001C0144J, 25001C0227J, 25001C0229J, 25001C0231J, 25001C0232J, 

25001C0233J, 25001C0234J, 25001C0251J and 25001C0253J dated July 16, 2014. The exact boundaries 

of the District may be defined by the 100-year base flood elevations shown on the FIRM and further 

defined by the Barnstable County Flood Insurance Study (FIS) report dated July 16, 2014, or as defined 

by any amended or superseding FIS report. The FIRM and FIS report are incorporated herein by 

reference and are on file with the Town Clerk, Planning Board, Building Official, and Conservation 

Commission. (4/14)  

C. Administration 

1. Precedence over Underlying Zoning 

The floodplain management regulations found in this Floodplain Overlay District section shall 

take precedence over any less restrictive conflicting Bylaw, regulation, or policy. 

2. Disclaimer of Liability 

The degree of flood protection required by this bylaw [ordinance] is considered reasonable but 

does not imply total flood protection. 



3. Severability 

If any section, provision or portion of this bylaw [ordinance] is deemed to be unconstitutional 

or invalid by a court, the remainder of the ordinance shall be effective. 

4. Designation of Floodplain Administrator 

The Town of Truro hereby designates the position of Conservation Agent to be the official 

floodplain administrator for the Town. 

5. Requirement to submit new technical data 

If the Town acquires data that changes the base flood elevation in the FEMA mapped 

Special Flood Hazard Areas, the Town will, within 6 months, notify FEMA of these changes 

by submitting the technical or scientific data that supports the change(s.)  Notification shall 

be submitted to: 

FEMA Region I Risk Analysis Branch Chief 
99 High St., 6th floor, Boston, MA  02110 
 
And copy of notification to: 
 
Massachusetts NFIP State Coordinator 
MA Dept. of Conservation & Recreation, 251 Causeway Street, Boston, MA  02114 

6.  Variances  

a. Variances to Building Code Floodplain Standards 

The Town will request from the State Building Code Appeals Board a written and/or audible 

copy of the portion of the hearing related to the variance, and will maintain this record in the 

community’s files.   

The Town shall also issue a letter to the property owner regarding potential impacts to the 

annual premiums for the flood insurance policy covering that property, in writing over the 

signature of a community official that (i) the issuance of a variance to construct a structure 

below the base flood level will result in increased premium rates for flood insurance up to 

amounts as high as $25 for $100 of insurance coverage and (ii) such construction below the 

base flood level increases risks to life and property.  

Such notification shall be maintained with the record of all variance actions for the 

referenced development in the floodplain overlay district. 

 

 

 



b.  Variances to Zoning Bylaws related to community compliance with National Flood Insurance Program 

(NFIP)  

A variance from these floodplain bylaws must meet the requirements set out by State law, 

and may only be granted if: 1) Good and sufficient cause and exceptional non-financial 

hardship exist; 2) the variance will not result in additional threats to public safety, 

extraordinary public expense, or fraud or victimization of the public; and 3) the variance is 

the minimum action necessary to afford relief. 

7.  Final Approval by Floodplain Administrator  

a. No site work or construction may commence within the Floodplain Overlay District until 

all necessary permits and other approvals have been obtained, and a final approval is issued 

by the Floodplain Administrator.  

 b. A completed checklist of all necessary permits and approvals, available from the Building 

Department, shall be submitted by the proponent to the Floodplain Administrator, with 

copies of such permits and approvals.  The checklist shall include permits and approvals 

from the following authorities, and may be amended from time to time by the Floodplain 

Administrator: 

 Conservation Commission and/or Department of Environmental Protection 

 Board of Health 

 Zoning Board of Appeals  

 Planning Board 

 Natural Heritage and Endangered Species Program (Division of Fisheries and Wildlife) 

 

 c.  The Floodplain Administrator shall review the checklist and permits/approvals 

 submitted and upon a finding that all necessary permits have been obtained, shall issue 

 Final Approval.  

 

C. Regulations. The following requirements apply in the Flood Plain District.  

1. Within Zones AE substantial improvement means all new construction, any reconstruction, 

rehabilitation, addition, or other improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 

percent of the market value of the structure before the “start of construction” of the improvement. This 

includes structures which have incurred “substantial damage”, regardless of the value or of the actual 

cost of repair work performed. It does not, however, include either 1) any project for improvement of a 



structure to correct existing violations of state or local health, sanitary, or safety code specifications 

which have been identified by the local code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary 

to assure safe living conditions, or 2) any alteration of a “historic structure” provided that the alteration 

will not preclude the structure’s continued designation as a “historic structure.”  

2. Within Zone A, where the base flood elevation is not provided on the FIRM, the Building 

Commissioner shall determine the base flood elevation from the best available other federal, state, 

municipal or private studies, if any. All subdivision proposals greater than 50 lots or 5 acres, whichever is 

the lesser, shall include base flood elevation data. If the data is not available from either the FIRM or 

other studies, the minimum requirements of the State Building Code, shall apply.  

In A Zones, in the absence of FEMA BFE data and floodway data, the building department will 

obtain, review and reasonably utilize base flood elevation and floodway data available from a 

Federal, State, or other source as criteria for requiring new construction, substantial 

improvements, or other development in Zone A as the basis for elevating residential structures 

to or above base flood level, for floodproofing or elevating nonresidential structures to or 

above base flood level, and for prohibiting encroachments in floodways. 

 

3. In Zone AE, along watercourses that have not had a regulatory floodway designated, the best 

available Federal, State, local, or other floodway data shall be used to prohibit encroachments in 

floodways which would result in any increase in flood levels within the community during the 

occurrence of the base flood discharge.  

4. In a riverine situation, the Assistant Town Administrator or the Health/Conservation Agent shall notify 

the following of any alteration or relocation of a watercourse: • Adjacent Communities NFIP • State 

Coordinator Massachusetts Department of Conservation and Recreation 251 Causeway Street, Suite 

600-700 Boston, MA 02114-2104 Truro Zoning Bylaw – April 2019 Page 19 • NFIP Program Specialist 

Federal Emergency Management Agency, Region I 99 High Street, 6th Floor Boston, MA 02110  

5. Within Zone AO on the FIRM, adequate drainage paths must be provided around structures on slopes, 

to guide floodwaters around and away from proposed structures.  

6. Subdivisions 

a. All subdivision proposals must be designed to assure that: a1. such proposals minimize flood damage; 

b1. all public utilities and facilities are located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage; 

and c3. adequate drainage is provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards.  

b. When proposing subdivisions or other developments greater than 50 lots or 5 acres 

(whichever is less), the proponent must provide technical data to determine base flood 

elevations for each developable parcel shown on the design plans. 

 



7. Located within the Flood Plain District are areas designated as coastal high hazard areas (Zone VE). 

Since these areas are extremely hazardous due to high velocity water surges and hurricane wave wash, 

the following provisions shall apply:  

a. All new construction shall be located landward of the reach of the mean high tide.  

b. Man-made alteration of sand dunes, which in the opinion of the Building Commissioner may increase 

potential flood damage, is prohibited. The building of a structure on a dune may in itself constitute 

alteration if the dune’s growth and development is inhibited or changed so as to decrease the dune’s 

present and future value as a natural deterrent to, and protection from, water surges and wave wash.  

c. The Building Commissioner shall a) obtain the elevation above mean sea level of the lowest habitable 

floor (including basement) of all new or substantially improved structures and whether or not such 

structures contain a basement b) if the structure has been floodproofed, obtain the elevation (in 

relation to mean sea level) to which the structure was floodproofed, and c) maintain a record of all such 

information.  

D. In the event it is the applicant’s opinion that the land or structure in question is not, in fact, located 

within a special flood hazard area, or that any other data upon which the Building Commissioner is 

relying, is erroneous, the applicant shall furnish at his expense sufficient technical information to 

support his opinion. 



  

Truro Select Board  
Tuesday, March 8, 2022 

Regular Meeting-5:00pm 
 
 

 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Review/Approve and Authorize Signature: 

1. Cell Tower Agreements 
B. Review and Approve Appointment Renewals:  Anthony Jackett as Truro’s Harbor Master, Kevin 

Grunwald as Truro’s Representative to the Cape Cod Commission 
C. Review and Approve 2022 Seasonal Business Licenses-Savory and the Sweet Escape (Common 

Victualer); Adventure Bound-North Truro Camping Area (Transient Vendor); Adventure Bound-
Horton’s (Transient Vendor); Whitman House Restaurant (Common Victualer); Top Mast Café 
(Common Victualer); Beach Point Health & Swim Club (Common Victualer) 

D. Review and Approve Select Board Minutes:     
8. Select Board Reports/Comments 
9. Town Manager Report 

10. Next Meeting Agenda: Regular Meeting-March 22, 2022  
 
 
 
 

 



1 

Agenda Item: 7A1 

TOWN OF TRURO 
 

                      Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Town Manager 
 
REQUESTOR:     Darrin Tangeman, Town Manager  
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  March 8, 2022 
 
ITEM:  Leases for Two (2) Telecommunications Towers 
 
EXPLANATION:   
At the September 27, 2020 Annual Town Meeting (Article 5: Authorization to Lease Land for 
Cellular Tower), voters authorized the Select Board to negotiate and enter into lease 
agreements for the cellular towers located at the Public Safety facility at 344 Route 6, North 
Truro and the Truro Landfill Site at Route 6, South Truro. The current leases for the towers 
expired May 15, 2021.  
 
At the May 25, 2021 Select Board Meeting the Board approved two leases prepared by Town 
Counsel for the cellular tower lease. Minor administrative changes were made to the sub-lease 
rent and a requirement to remove unclaimed equipment within the first 12 months of the 
lease were added. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE) Monies received from the cellular tower leases go into 
the Town’s Receipts Reserved Fund.  
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  The Town will not have active leases on the two cellular towers in 
Truro, where cellular service and the public safety radio system are maintained. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  (Two Motions) 

Motion to approve and execute the twenty-year lease agreement between the Town of Truro 
and SBA for the telecommunication tower and facilities at the South Truro Transfer Station 
location. 
 

 



2 

Motion to approve and execute the twenty-year lease agreement between the Town of Truro 
and Crown Castle for the telecommunication tower and facilities at the North Truro Public 
Safety Facility location.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
20-year lease agreement between the Town of Truro and SBA for the telecommunication 
tower and facilities at the South Truro Transfer Station location (TO BE PROVIDED PRIOR TO 
THE MEETING) 
 
20-year lease agreement between the Town of Truro and Crown Castle for the 
telecommunication tower and facilities at the North Truro Public Safety Facility location (TO BE 
PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE MEETING) 
 



1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Noelle Scoullar, Executive Assistant 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  March 8, 2022 
 
ITEM:  Reappointment of Anthony Jackett as Truro’s Harbor Master 
 
EXPLANATION:  This is a housekeeping measure to have a record of Harbor Master Jackett’s 
reappointment. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  There will not be a current record of Harbor Master Jackett’s 
appointment. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to reappoint Tony Jackett as Truro’s Harbor Master for an 
indefinite term. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  None 

 

Consent Agenda Item:  7B1 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

 

TOWN OF TRURO 

 Select Board Agenda Item  
 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
REQUESTOR:  Noelle Scoullar, Executive Assistant 
 
REQUESTED MEETING DATE:  March 8, 2022 
 
ITEM:  Reappointment of Kevin Grunwald as Truro’s Representative to the Cape Cod 
Commission. 
 
EXPLANATION:  The Cape Cod Commission has contacted the Town, notifying us that Mr. 
Grunwald has expressed interest in continuing to serve as Truro’s Representative.  All 
appointments are for three years. 
 
FINANCIAL SOURCE (IF APPLICABLE):  N/A 
 
IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED:  Truro will not have a representative on the Cape Cod 
Commission. 
 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Motion to reappoint Kevin Grunwald as Truro’s Representative to the 
Cape Cod Commission for a three-year term effective April 25, 2022 through April 24, 2025. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Letter from Cape Cod Commission 
2. Email from Kevin Grunwald 

 

Consent Agenda Item:  7B2 
 
 
 
 



Consent Agenda Item:  7B2



January 15



   

Consent Agenda Item: 7C 

 
TOWN OF TRURO 

        Select Board Agenda Item 
 

DEPARTMENT: Licensing Department 
 

REQUESTOR: Noelle Scoullar, Executive Assistant  
 

REQUESTED MEETING DATE: March 8, 2022 
 

ITEM: Approval of Renewal of 2022 Seasonal Business Licenses:  
• Savory and the Sweet Escape-Common Victualer  
• North Truro Camping Area/Adventure Bound-Transient Vendor 
• Horton’s/Adventure Bound-Transient Vendor 
• Whitman House Restaurant-Common Victualer 
• Topmast Café-Common Victualer 
• Beach Point Health and Swim Club-Common Victualer 

 
EXPLANATION: These licenses are under the authority of the Select Board as the Local Licensing Authority.  
If you approve this license for renewal, the licenses will be issued only upon compliance with all regulations, 
receipt of the necessary fees, proof of taxes paid in full for the fiscal year. The Food Service Licenses (and 
Campground licenses for Adventure Bound locations) for all applicants have been issued by the Health Agent. 
There were no reported issues with these establishments in 2021. 

 
 

Mass General Law 
Licenses & Permits Issued     
      by Select Board 

 
Names of Businesses 

Chapter 140 § 2        
 

Common Victualler 
(Cooking, Preparing and Serving 

food) 

                   Savory and the Sweet Escape 
Whitman House Restaurant 

Top Mast Café 
Beach Point Health & Swim Club 

 Chapter 101 § 2 Transient Vendor 
(Seasonal Retail) 

North Truro Camping Area 
Horton’s 

 

IMPACT IF NOT APPROVED: The applicants will not be issued their Licenses to operate.  
 

SUGGESTED ACTION: MOTION TO approve the 2022 Seasonal Licenses for Savory and the Sweet Escape; North 
Truro Camping Area/Adventure Bound; Horton’s/Adventure Bound; Whitman House Restaurant; Top Mast 
Café; and Beach Point Health & Swim Club upon compliance with all regulations and receipt of the necessary 
fees. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Renewal Application for 2022: Savory and the Sweet Escape 
2. Renewal Application for 2022:  North Truro Camping Area/Adventure Bound 



3. Renewal Application for 2022:  Horton’s/Adventure Bound 
4. Renewal Application for 2022:  Whitman House Restaurant 
5. Renewal Application for 2022:  Top Mast Café 
6. Renewal Application for 2022:  Beach Point Health & Swim Club 



Consent Agenda Item:  7C1

January 15

January 15

January 15

January 15

January 15 January 15





January 15







January 15



January 15



January 15

January 15



January 15

January 15



















Consent Agenda Item:  7C2

January 15

January 15 January 15



January 15



January 15



January 15



January 15

January 15

January 15

January 15

January 15









Consent Agenda Item:  7C3

January 15

January 15



January 15January 15



January 15



January 15

January 15

January 15

January 15

January 15



Jan
uar
y 15









Consent Agenda Item:  7C4

January 15

January 15

January 15

January 15

January 15 January 15



January 15

January 15



January 15



January 15



















Consent Agenda Item:  7C5

January 15

January 15

January 15

January 15

January 15 January 15





January 15



January 15

January 15

























Consent Agenda Item:  7C6

January 15

January 15

January 15

January 15 January 15





January 15



January 15

January 15



January 15

January 15












	Blank Page
	6C3 Original Plan for 33 Old County.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	24 x 36 sheet


	6C4 33 Old County Road_Driveway Alternate 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	24 x 36 sheet


	6C10 126 Historic docs Attachments for Board Packet - 3-1-2022 (1).pdf
	6A2 Agenda Request-Curb Cut 126 Old County Road
	6A2 Curb Cut-126 Old County Rd-Lown
	Page Identifiers
	AFP Page
	AFP Page
	AFP Page

	7 Consent Agenda
	7C Agenda Request-Curb Cut Application- 126 and 33 Old County
	7C1 Curb Cut Application-126 Old County

	6E2 Rec and Beach - beach sticker fee increase feb 2022.pdf
	Agenda Item:  6E2
	Truro Recreation & Beach

	6F4 Draft Article PB 3 Lot Coverage.pdf
	SECTION 50
	Area and Height Regulations


	6F6 Draft Article PB 7 Mean Ground Level draft.pdf
	Proposed New Regulation, Section 50, Area and Height Regulations

	6G1 CPC Articles.pdf
	COMMUNITY PRESERVATION ACT ARTICLES
	Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Contribution to the Affordable Housing Trust Fund
	Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Housing Consultant
	Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Lower Cape Housing Institute
	Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Orleans Cape Cod Five Housing
	Article XX: Community Preservation Act: High Head Trail Development
	Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Memorials for Payomet Peoples—Phase 1
	Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Acquisition Fund for Highland House Museum
	Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Town Records—Phase 1
	Article XX: Community Preservation Act: 9 Mobi Mats or Equivalent and Fencing for Improved Beach Access
	Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Truro Beach Paddlecraft Racks
	Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Truro Library Edible Forest
	Article XX: Community Preservation Act: 12 Histories of Pond Village & Fishing Industry at Cold Storage Beach
	Article XX: Community Preservation Act: Administrative Support


	6H1 Town Meeting Articles.pdf
	Article X: Shellfish Revolving Fund
	Article X: General Override
	Article XX: Home Rule Petition to Establish a Tax Workoff Program for Persons with Disabilities
	Article XX: Home Rule Petition to Impose a 0.5% Real Estate Transfer Fee




